
  www.greenwoodmn.com

  

  

 
 

 
AGENDA 
Greenwood City Council Meeting 
 

THURSDAY, July 5, 2012 
20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331  
 
Welcome! The public is invited to address the council regarding any agenda item. If your topic is not on the agenda,  
you may speak during Matters from the Floor. Agenda times are approximate.  

 
7:00 PM 1.   CALL TO ORDER ~ ROLL CALL ~ APPROVE AGENDA 

 

7:00 PM 2.   CONSENT AGENDA 
Council members may remove consent agenda items for discussion. Removed items will be put under Other Business. 
A. Approve: May Cash Summary Report 
B. Approve: June Verifieds, Check Register, Electronic Fund Transfers 
C. Approve: July Payroll Register 

 

7:05 PM 3.   MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR 
This is an opportunity for the public to address the council regarding matters not on the agenda. The council will not 
engage in discussion or take action on items presented at this time. However, the council may ask for clarification and 
may include items on a future agenda. Comments are limited to three minutes.  

 

7:10 PM 4.   PRESENTATIONS, GUESTS & ANNOUNCEMENTS 
A. Announcement: Budget Worksession, 6 PM, 08-01-12 (before regular council meeting) 
B. Announcement: Night to Unite, 08-07-12 
C. Announcement: Old Log Ice Cream Social & Sousa Band, 4:30 PM, 07-29-12, Free 

     

7:15 PM 5.   PUBLIC HEARINGS 
A. None 

     

7:15 PM 6.   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
A. Consider: Resolutions Regarding Excelsior Blvd. Watermain Project 

Resolution 07-12, Declaring Insufficiency of 05-05-12 Petition and Supplemental Petitions 
Resolution 15-12, Declaring Adequacy (or Insufficiency) of 06-13-12 Petition  

B. Consider: Resolution 16-12, Variance Findings of Fact, Keith and Stacy Carlson, 20965 
Channel Drive (deck variance) 

C. Consider: Resolution 17-12, Conditional Use Permit Findings of Fact, Keith and Stacy 
Carlson, 20965 Channel Drive (to exceed the annual permitted significant tree harvest) 

D. 2nd Reading: Ordinance 210, Amending Code Section 310.30, Subd. 5(d) and (f), Use of 
Sewers (authorizing the council to institute programs to ensure compliance with ordinances 
that prohibit discharge of clean water into the sanitary sewer system) 
     

7:40 PM 7.   NEW BUSINESS 
A. Consider: Variance Application, Matt and Angela Lindberg, 5160 Greenwood Circle (grade 

alteration) 
B. 1st Reading: Ordinance 212, Amending Code Section 425, Municipal Watercraft Spaces 

(establishing procedures for canoe racks) 
C. 1st Reading: Ordinance 211, Amending Code Sections 520.15 and 525.15 (changing the 

deadline for delinquent sewer and stormwater payments from Sept. 30 to Sept. 15) 
D. Discuss: Possibility of Adding Section 825, Intoxicating Liquor Prohibitions (prohibiting 

commercial businesses from serving or allowing attendees to bring liquor to business events) 
E. Discuss: Possibility of Revising Code Section 1215 (to allow the council to waive the second 

reading of ordinances) 
     

8:30 PM 8.   OTHER BUSINESS 
A. None 

     

8:30 PM 9.  COUNCIL REPORTS 
A. Fletcher: Planning Commission, Lake Mtka. Comm. Commission, Milfoil, Xcel Project 
B. Kind: Police, Administration, Mayors’ Meetings, Website 
C. Page: Lake Minnetonka Conservation District 
D. Quam: Roads & Sewer, Minnetonka Community Education 
E. Rose: Excelsior Fire District 

     

8:45 PM 10.  ADJOURNMENT 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 2 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
Summary: The consent agenda typically includes the most recent council minutes, cash summary report, verifieds report, 
electronic fund transfers, and check registers. The consent agenda also may include the 2nd reading of ordinances that 
were approved unanimously by the council at the 1st reading. Council members may remove consent agenda items for 
further discussion. Removed items will be placed under Other Business on the agenda. 
 
Council Action: Required. Possible motion … 
 

1. I move the council approves the consent agenda items as presented. 
 



Variance with Variance with 

Month 2011 2012 Prior Month Prior Year

January $686,781 $712,814 -$56,305 $26,033

February $693,859 $704,873 -$7,941 $11,014

March $675,719 $690,422 -$14,451 $14,703

April $629,569 $637,990 -$52,432 $8,421

May $593,928 $618,262 -$19,728 $24,334

June $555,064 $0 -$618,262 -$555,064

July $776,650 $0 $0 -$776,650

August $768,223 $0 $0 -$768,223

September $599,139 $0 $0 -$599,139

October $512,188 $0 $0 -$512,188

November $440,946 $0 $0 -$440,946

December $769,119 $0 $0 -$769,119

Bridgewater Bank Money Market $411,207

Bridgewater Bank Checking $3,769

Beacon Bank CD $120,000

Beacon Bank Money Market $83,186
Beacon Bank Checking $100

$618,262

ALLOCATION BY FUND

General Fund $87,995

General Fund Designated for Parks $27,055

Bridge Capital Project Fund $59,004

Stormwater Special Revenue Fund $8,695

Sewer Enterprise Fund $391,068
Marina Enterprise Fund $44,445

$618,262

City of Greenwood

Monthly Cash Summary

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

$800,000

$900,000

Ja
nu

ar
y

Feb
ru

ar
y

M
ar

ch
Apr

il
M

ay
Ju

ne
Ju

ly

Aug
us

t

Sep
te

m
be

r

O
ct
ob

er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r

2011

2012



 

 

CITY OF GREENWOOD Check Register Page:     1 

Pay Period Date(s): 06/02/2012 to 07/01/2012 Jun 25, 2012  04:00pm 

 

Pay Per Check Check Amount

Date Jrnl Date Number Payee Emp No

07/01/12 PC 07/01/12 7011201 Debra J. Kind 34 283.05 

07/01/12 PC 07/01/12 7011202 Fletcher, Thomas M 33 88.70 

07/01/12 PC 07/01/12 7011203 H. Kelsey Page 35 188.70 

07/01/12 PC 07/01/12 7011204 Quam, Robert 32 188.70 

07/01/12 PC 07/01/12 7011205 William Rose 36 188.70 

          Grand Totals: 937.85 



 

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check  

 

CITY OF GREENWOOD Check Register - Summary Report Page:     1 

Jun 25, 2012  04:03pm 

Check Issue Date(s): 06/01/2012 - 06/30/2012  

 

Per Date Check No Vendor No Payee Check GL Acct Amount

06/12 06/07/2012 10591 9 CITY OF DEEPHAVEN 101-20100 7,198.49 

06/12 06/07/2012 10592 802 GRAINGER 605-20100 107.19 

06/12 06/07/2012 10593 803 HSBC BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 101-20100 80.42 

06/12 06/07/2012 10594 3 KELLY LAW OFFICES 101-20100 3,507.50 

06/12 06/07/2012 10595 99 LAKE MTKA CONSERVATION DISTRIC 101-20100 1,566.00 

06/12 06/07/2012 10596 105 METROPOLITAN COUNCIL ENV SERV 602-20100 2,598.16 

06/12 06/07/2012 10597 783 SGC HORIZON LLC 101-20100 350.00 

06/12 06/07/2012 10598 38 SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE DEPT 101-20100 14,376.58 

06/12 06/07/2012 10599 15 South Lake-Excelsior Chamber 101-20100 1,400.00 

06/12 06/07/2012 10600 136 Sun Newspapers 101-20100 139.35 

06/12 06/07/2012 10601 745 Vintage Waste Systems 101-20100 1,568.40 

06/12 06/07/2012 10602 145 XCEL 101-20100 190.71 

06/12 06/25/2012 10603 51 BOLTON & MENK, INC. 101-20100 4,865.00 

06/12 06/25/2012 10604 784 HERITAGE SHADE TREE CONSULT 101-20100 525.00 

06/12 06/25/2012 10605 804 M.A. APPAREL & PROMOTIONS 101-20100 299.50 

06/12 06/25/2012 10606 742 Marco, Inc. 101-20100 212.15 

06/12 06/25/2012 10607 136 Sun Newspapers 101-20100 47.96 

          Totals: 39,032.41 

           Dated: ______________________________________________________

           Mayor: ______________________________________________________

  City Council: ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

City Recorder: ______________________________________________________



 

 

CITY OF GREENWOOD Payment Approval Report - for Council Approval Page:     1 

Input Date(s): 06/01/2012 - 06/30/2012 Jun 25, 2012  04:02pm 

 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt

BOLTON & MENK, INC.

0147955 05/31/201251 BOLTON & MENK, INC. 2012 MISC ENGINEERING FEES 85.00 

2012 MISC ENGINEERING FEES 27.50 

2012 MISC ENGINEERING FEES 435.00 

2012 MISC ENGINEERING FEES 192.00 

0147956 05/31/20122012 STREET IMPROVEMENT 4,125.50 

          Total BOLTON & MENK, INC. 4,865.00 

CITY OF DEEPHAVEN

JUNE 2012 05/31/20129 CITY OF DEEPHAVEN RENT & EQUIPMENT 542.95 

Postage 24.30 

COPIES 1.60 

SEWER 975.12 

WEED/TREE/MOWING 1,787.72 

Docks 325.04 

Clerk Services 3,143.00 

ZONING 357.41 

LUMBER FOR DOCKS 41.35 

          Total CITY OF DEEPHAVEN 7,198.49 

GRAINGER

9841193593 05/31/2012802 GRAINGER FIRE EXTINGUISHER BOXES 107.19 

          Total GRAINGER 107.19 

HERITAGE SHADE TREE CONSULT 

5217 06/14/2012784 HERITAGE SHADE TREE CONSULT URBAN FORESTRY CONSULTING 525.00 

          Total HERITAGE SHADE TREE CONSULT 525.00 

HSBC BUSINESS SOLUTIONS

4062049605 05/03/2012803 HSBC BUSINESS SOLUTIONS BROOMS/SQUEEGEE - TENNIS CRTS 80.42 

          Total HSBC BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 80.42 

KELLY LAW OFFICES

5986 05/24/20123 KELLY LAW OFFICES GENERAL LEGAL 2,863.50 

5987 05/25/2012LAW ENFORCE PROSECUTION 644.00 

          Total KELLY LAW OFFICES 3,507.50 

LAKE MTKA CONSERVATION DISTRIC

052912 05/29/201299 LAKE MTKA CONSERVATION DISTRIC 3rd QTR LEVY PMT 1,566.00 

          Total LAKE MTKA CONSERVATION DISTRIC 1,566.00 

M.A. APPAREL & PROMOTIONS

42746 06/19/2012804 M.A. APPAREL & PROMOTIONS 4TH OF JULY T-SHIRTS 299.50 

          Total M.A. APPAREL & PROMOTIONS 299.50 

Marco, Inc.

205473945 06/13/2012742 Marco, Inc. Copier lease 212.15 

          Total Marco, Inc. 212.15 

METROPOLITAN COUNCIL ENV SERV



 

 

CITY OF GREENWOOD Payment Approval Report - for Council Approval Page:     2 

Input Date(s): 06/01/2012 - 06/30/2012 Jun 25, 2012  04:02pm 

 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt

0000990874 06/04/2012105 METROPOLITAN COUNCIL ENV SERV Monthly wastewater Charge 2,598.16 

          Total METROPOLITAN COUNCIL ENV SERV 2,598.16 

SGC HORIZON LLC

68390 05/28/2012783 SGC HORIZON LLC 2012 STREET IMPROVEMENT 175.00 

68786 06/01/20122012 STREET IMPROVEMENT 175.00 

          Total SGC HORIZON LLC 350.00 

SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE DEPT

JUNE 2012 06/01/201238 SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE DEPT OPERATING BUDGET 14,376.58 

          Total SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE DEPT 14,376.58 

South Lake-Excelsior Chamber

060712 06/07/201215 South Lake-Excelsior Chamber JULY 4TH FIREWORKS FUND 1,400.00 

          Total South Lake-Excelsior Chamber 1,400.00 

Sun Newspapers

1107226 05/24/2012136 Sun Newspapers 2012 ST IMPROVEMENT 139.35 

1111052 06/07/2012Legal Notices 47.96 

          Total Sun Newspapers 187.31 

Vintage Waste Systems

052512 05/25/2012745 Vintage Waste Systems City Recycling Contract 1,568.40 

          Total Vintage Waste Systems 1,568.40 

XCEL

052912 05/29/2012145 XCEL Sleepy Hollow Road * 8.76 

LIFT STATION #1 31.07 

LIFT STATION #2 30.26 

LIFT STATION #3 20.47 

LIFT STATION #4 28.54 

LIFT STATION #6 59.10 

4925 MEADVILLE STREET * 8.92 

SIREN 3.59 

          Total XCEL 190.71 

Total Paid: 39,032.41 

Total Unpaid:  -     

Grand Total: 39,032.41 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 6A 

Agenda Date: 07-15-12 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Consider: Resolutions Regarding Excelsior Blvd. Watermain Project 
 
Summary:	  The city received petitions in May regarding extension of the city of Excelsior’s watermain along Excelsior 
Blvd.  The council discussed the petitions at the 06-06-12 council meeting and decided that the petitions were unclear 
whether the petitioners were asking for an 8-inch or 12-inch pipe. Since then the city has received a 06-13-12 petition that 
clarifies that the request is for a watermain up to 12-inches. The 06-13-12 petition has been reviewed by the city attorney 
and he has provided a memo (attached) outlining his review and the next steps in the process. 
 
Also attached are resolutions declaring insufficiency of the May petitions, declaring adequacy or insufficiency of the 06-13-
12 petition, as well as drafts of resolutions for future steps in the process. 
 
Council Action: Petition action required. Possible motions … 

 
1. I move the council approves resolution 07-12 declaring insufficiency of the May 5, 13, 14, 2012 petitions for a 

watermain extension along Excelsior Blvd. 
 

2. I move the council approves resolution 15-12 declaring adequacy of the 06-13-12 petition for watermain extension 
along Excelsior Blvd., and ordering preparation of report and city planning commission review for compliance with 
the city land use plan. 
 

3. I move the council approves resolution 15-12 declaring insufficiency of the 06-13-12 petition for watermain 
extension along Excelsior Blvd.  







 
 

KELLY LAW OFFICES 
________________________________________________________________________                                                                             
                   Established 1948 

351 SECOND STREET 
EXCELSIOR, MINNESOTA 55331 

MARK W. KELLY          
WILLIAM F. KELLY (1922-1995)              (952) 474-5977 
                 FAX  474-9575 
 
 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

Date: June 15, 2012 
 
To:  Mayor Kind and Council Members 
 
From:  Mark W. Kelly Attorney at Law 
 
Re:  Excelsior Boulevard Water Main Petition 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
After the City Council indicated at their June City Council meeting, that the Petition for 
installation of Water Main in Excelsior Blvd, received from petition circulator Tom 
Fletcher, needed a more definite statement of the scope and size of the requested water 
main improvement, a second petition has been received.   
 
Extent of Requested Improvement: 
 
The petition dated June 13, 2012, states that the undersigned… 
 

“petition that [Excelsior Boulevard] be improved by installing water main of up 
to 12 inches in size pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 429.  The proposed 
water main would connect to existing City of Excelsior water main that is 
currently in place to the west of the proposed improvement.”  
 

The Petition seeks installation of water main, between 21170 Excelsior Boulevard and 
21380 Excelsior Blvd.  Because the Met Council project will excavate and rebuild 
Excelsior Boulevard, the simple extension thereof is possible.  The new petition describes 
the requested improvement in a manner that appears to inform the petitioners of the size 
of the pipe requested and by implication that the associated special assessment would be 
for such. 



 2 

However no such extension can proceed without city council approval after a full report 
from the city engineer and a duly noticed and conducted public hearing. 
 
These petitions are authorized under state statutes governing improvements to be paid for 
by special assessment (MN ST §429).  Where improvements authorized by state statute 
are desired the special benefit associated with the proposed improvement is typically 
assessed to the abutting property owners.  The general benefit to the city is the city’s 
expense.  That expense may be paid for through the general levy and/or bonding may be 
employed.  In any event the process stated in Chapter 429 must be followed.    
 
The Council should know that UPON RECEIPT OF A PETITION OF 100% OF THE 
ABUTTING PROPERTY OWNERS to a proposed improvement, the city has the ability to assess 
the entire cost against those properties.  In this case the petition bears the signatures of only 6 out 
of 12 abutting properties.  Consequently, there will be a general benefit component of the project 
cost that the city as a whole must share in.   
 
Legal Adequacy Analysis 
The first step in the Chapter 429 process is to determine the legal adequacy of the 
Petition.  The combined petitions dated May 5, 13, & 14 contained signatures of the 
owners of 8 properties.  The June 13th Petition contains signatures of the owners of 6 
properties.  Missing from the June petition are the owners of 21290 Excelsior Blvd and 
21320 Excelsior Blvd.  For purposes of this review, it is assumed that the May 5, 13, 14 
petition will be formally withdrawn by the petitioners or formally rejected by the city 
council for lack of precision. Thereafter the June 13th petition may be considered.  
 
The 429 process begins when a Petition is received containing the signatures of the 
owners of at least 35 percent in frontage of the property bordering the proposed 
improvements.    
 
The Petition of June 13th employs a format of the League of Minnesota Cities.  It is 
therefore appropriate.  The Petition represents that the signatories comprise the owners of 
not less than 35% in frontage of real property abutting Excelsior Blvd between 21170 
Excelsior Blvd and 21380 Excelsior Blvd.  A review of Hennepin County property tax 
records shows this stretch of Excelsior Boulevard is abutted by 10 residential and 2 
commercial properties.  The Petition bears signatures of the co-owners of 6 out of 12 
properties or 50% of all abutting properties along this section of Excelsior Blvd.  A 
review of Hennepin County Property Tax records for property owner names shows that 
the names of the petition signers match the county records.   

Legal Standard of Review 

MN ST §429.035 mandates that when any petition for the making of any improvement in 
any statutory city…, however organized, for the cost of which special assessments may 
be, in whole or in part, levied therefor, is presented to the governing body of the 
municipality, the [city council] shall, by resolution, determine whether or not the petition 
has been signed by the required percentage of owners of property affected thereby. 



 3 

City Attorney Opinion.   
 
I find that as regards the Petition dated June 13, 2012: 
 

(1) the form of the petition legally acceptable;  
(2) the signatures thereon match the names of the owners of record on file for the 
stated addresses found online at Hennepin County Property Tax Information, and 
are apparently genuine; and 
(3) the signers represent owners of 50%, 6 of the12 affected properties and 
therefore not less than 35 percent of the total abutting properties of the frontage of 
real property abutting the proposed improvement between the west line of 21380 
Excelsior Boulevard and the east line of 21170 Excelsior Boulevard, Greenwood, 
Minnesota.  
 

Given the foregoing, I believe the petition has been signed by the required percentage of 
owners of property directly affected by the proposed improvement.  However, the 
opinion of the city attorney is not controlling.  The determination of whether the petition 
has been signed by the required percentage of owners of property affected thereby is a 
matter that must be considered and handled by resolution of the city council. 
 
COUNCIL ACTION ITEM:  May Petition Rejection. 
 
By statute, the city council must determine whether a petition has sufficient detail to 
know the scope of the requested improvement.  As earlier considered, the May Petition 
lacked any reference to the size of the requested water main.  That lack of detail placed 
the city at risk of bearing all cost above and beyond a standard 8-inch water main.  It also 
left the city open to a legal challenge on the whether the city has legal authority to 
upgrade the project from a nominal 8-inch pipe to 12-inch pipe.  To address those issues 
the council must formally reject the May petition before considering the June 13th 
Petition.  To do so the Council needs to adopt Resolution 1B attached. 
 
COUNCIL ACTION ITEM:  June Petition Review. 
 
Then, if the city council is satisfied it understands the scope of the requested project and 
that the June 13, 2012 petition has been signed by the required percentage of owners of 
property affected thereby, and that the new petition adequately describes the requested 
improvement in a manner that appears to sufficiently inform the petitioners of the size of 
the pipe requested and by implication that the associated assessment would be for 12-inch 
water main, the council must adopt Resolution 1: Resolution Declaring the Adequacy 
of Petition and Ordering Preparation of (Engineering) Report.   
 
This resolution must be published in the official newspaper to begin the 30-day clock for 
filing an appeal.  Any person directly affected by the resolution may challenge the 
council’s determination (as to the legal sufficiency of the petition) in district court. The 
appeal must be made within 30 days and include a bond of $250.  
 



 4 

This resolution refers the matter to the city engineer for preparation of a report advising 
the council in a preliminary way as to whether the proposed improvement is necessary, 
cost effective, and feasible whether it should be made as proposed or in connection with 
some other improvement; the estimated cost of the improvement as recommended; and a 
description of the methodology used to calculate individual assessments for affected 
parcels. 
 
This resolution also refers the petitioned improvement to the City Planning Commission 
for determination whether the proposed capital improvement is in compliance with the 
city’s comprehensive plan, as required by MN ST §462.356. 
 
If the city council is not satisfied that the June 13th petition has been signed by the 
required percentage of owners of property affected thereby, or adequately describes the 
requested improvement in a manner that appears to sufficiently inform the petitioners of 
the size of the pipe requested and by implication that the associated assessment would be 
for 12-inch water main, the city council must adopt a Resolution Declaring the Petition 
Inadequate.  (see, Exhibit 1A)  In that case the petitioners may then revise and resubmit 
the petition with added specificity.  In that event, the foregoing review will be conducted 
again.  
  
Feasibility Report Receipt and Call for Public Hearing on Improvement. 
 
When the city engineer’s report has been ordered and is available, the report must be 
presented to the council and the council must by resolution formally receive the report. 
(see Exhibit 2)  Typically, that resolution will also call for a public hearing to be held 
thereon on a day, time and place certain.   Per statute, the city clerk must cause notice 
thereof to be given by two publications in the newspaper of a notice stating the time 
and place of the hearing, the general nature of the improvement, the estimated cost, 
and the area proposed to be assessed**. The two publications must be a week apart, 
and the hearing must be at least three days after the second publication.  
 
Not less than ten days before the hearing, notice of the hearing must also be mailed 
to the owner of each parcel within the area proposed to be assessed and must 
contain a statement that a reasonable estimate of the impact of the assessment will 
be available at the hearing, but failure to give mailed notice or any defects in the 
notice does not invalidate the proceedings. 
 
At the improvement hearing, interested persons may voice their concerns, whether or not 
they are in the proposed assessment area.  
 
The hearing may be adjourned from time to time.  To provide proper notice, before 
the improvement hearing is adjourned, the council must state on the record, the date, time 
and place of the continuation of the improvement hearing, if any.  
 
A resolution ordering the improvement may be adopted at any time within six 
months after the date of the hearing by vote of a majority of all members of the 



 5 

council.   This resolution may reduce, but not increase, the extent of the improvement as 
stated in the notice of hearing.  
 
Comment:  In the end, the City council may elect not to proceed. 
 
If the council rejects the project, it may not reconsider that same project unless another 
hearing is held following the required notice. The council must prepare a record of the 
proceedings and make written findings.  
 
Either arrangements for day labor or a contract must be made within one year of adopting 
the resolution ordering the improvement -- unless the council specifically states a 
different timeframe in the resolution ordering the improvement.  
 
Typically, cities assess all properties abutting or bordering on the improvement, but the 
council may wish to levy assessments against adjacent, non-abutting properties if the 
properties benefit from the improvement. In that event the Notice of Hearing must 
include the following statement:  “The area proposed to be assessed for such 
improvement is ______________ .” 
 
Limits on Scope of Project 
 
If the council elects to rely upon the June 13, 2012 petition as its basis for proceeding, it 
cannot make a substantial change in the nature of the improvement from that asked for in 
the petition. Thus for example, it may not order an improvement for water and sewer 
when the petition has asked for water alone, or add curb and gutter to a petition for 
blacktop, or order an extension of 12-inch water main for a greater distance than that 
petitioned.   
 
If the council elects not to rely upon the petition as its basis for proceeding, it may act 
on its own initiative in proposing a local improvement and ordering a feasibility report. A 
resolution directing preparation of a feasibility report requires only simple majority vote 
of all members of the council.  Later in the process, a “super-majority” vote, meaning a 
four-fifths vote of all members of the council is required to pass the resolution ordering an 
improvement initiated by council. But first the council must calculate the cost of the 
improvement or direct staff to do so and hold the requisite public hearing.  
 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 
If the council intends to use a special assessment as opposed to a budget expenditure/ 
general levy increase to pay for the improvement, all steps of Chapter 429 must be 
followed.     
 
Special assessments are a charge imposed on properties for a particular improvement that 
benefits the owners of those selected properties. The authority to use special assessments 
originates in the state constitution which allows the state legislature to give cities and 
other governmental units the authority “to levy and collect assessments for local 



 6 

improvements upon property benefited thereby.” The legislature confers that authority to 
cities in Minnesota Statutes Chapter 429.  
 
Special assessments reflect the influence of a specific local improvement on the value of 
selected property. No matter what method the city uses to establish the amount of the 
assessment, the real measure of benefit is the increase in the market value of the land 
because of the improvement.  
 
Under the special benefit test, special assessments are presumptively valid if  
  
• The land receives a special benefit from the improvement.  
• The assessment does not exceed the special benefit measured by the increase in market 
value due to the improvement.  
• The assessment is uniform as applied to the same class of property, in the assessed area.  
 
Because special assessments are appealable to district court, it is important that the city 
considers the benefit to the property as a result of the specific improvement. Councils 
often do this by retaining a qualified, licensed appraiser. At the hearings on the 
assessments the appraiser presents a written or oral report on the increase in market value 
as a result of the improvement. 
 
Chapter 429 allows coordinating the timelines of the special assessment and competitive 
bidding processes in a way that may protect the city from successful appeals and ensuing 
budget shortfalls. The city may determine the assessment amount and prepare the 
assessment roll before work on the local improvement even begins.  
 
The city can also avoid appeals by paying a substantial portion of the cost of all 
improvements out of general funds. The larger the portion of cost the city assumes, the 
less the chances that any individual assessment would exceed the benefit from the 
improvement as measured by the increase in market value. Indeed, the council can 
proceed with the proposed assessment based on estimates -- and plan to use monies from 
a reserve fund from general taxes and other uncommitted sources of revenue making up 
any difference between the assessments and the project cost. 
 
PROS and CONS OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - SUMMARY 
 
Following is a summary of the advantages and disadvantages of special assessment 
financing. The council can avoid many of the disadvantages with adequate plans and a 
long-range capital improvement program.  
 
Advantages of special assessment financing include:  
  
● Special assessments are generally a dependable source of revenue.  
 
● Special assessments are a means of raising money outside city debt and general 
property taxes. (Special assessment bonds do not count toward statutory debt limitations.)  



 7 

 
● Special assessments provide a means of levying charges for public services against 
property otherwise exempt from taxation.  
 
● Special assessments lower the cost to the community of bringing undeveloped land into 
urban use  
 
● Charging the property owner for the benefit received prevents or minimizes the 
possibility that a property owner will reap a financial profit from the improvement at the 
expense of the general taxpayer.  
 
Disadvantages of special assessment financing include:  
 
● The difficulty and expense in establishing the special benefit to the property.  
 
● The difficulties in special assessment administration. The administrative procedures 
require careful execution in order to avoid litigation.  
 
● Cities have at times used special assessments to pay for premature public 
improvements. Because the city generally bears some of the cost of every public 
improvement, land speculators sometimes urge councils to do unjustifiable special 
assessment programs.  
 
● The availability of special assessment financing often tempts city officials to 
underwrite the cost of governmental programs that should be an obligation of the entire 
city. 
 
● Unless special assessments conform to a city’s long-term financial and capital 
improvement plans, they can subject a city to two serious financial dangers. First, if a city 
frequently undertakes special assessment bond issues backed by the full faith and credit 
of a city in an unplanned manner, city credit might be overextended. This leads to higher 
interest charges on all city and school district borrowing and increases the possibility of 
default. Second, placing too heavy a burden on individual property owners (with special 
assessments and regular property taxes) runs the risk of increasing tax delinquencies and 
potentially jeopardizes a city’s credit and borrowing position.  
 
● From the council’s point of view, the public’s reaction to a proposed special 
assessment might be the most important determinative factor. While taxpayer resistance 
is usually minimal, this is not true in every instance. Special assessment programs receive 
much greater public support if the council adequately informs people of its intentions to 
make the improvement, the benefit the improvements will provide, and the necessary 
financial demands.  
 
At any time before or after the city actually incurs expenses for the improvement, the 
council must pass a resolution determining how much the city plans to pay (above and 
beyond what it may decide to pay for city-owned property in the assessment area) and 



 8 

separate from amounts to be assessed. Cities may assess the cost of an improvement to 
property benefited whether or not any part of the cost of the improvement is paid from 
the county state-aid highway fund, the municipal state-aid street fund or the trunk 
highway fund. Best practice suggests the council work with an appraiser and an attorney 
to determine the appropriate city share of a particular project.  
 
The council must also decide, with consultation from staff and consultants, which cost 
allocation methodology most nearly equates costs and benefit. Such methodology is often 
described as unit or area charges and involves classification of assessed properties. (The 
third prong of the benefit test requires a uniform assessment applied to the same class of 
property, in the assessed area.) Methodology may address the treatment of corner and 
odd-shaped lots.  
__________________________________ 

Source note:  The foregoing memorandum includes excerpts from The 
League of Minnesota Cities, Special assessment Guide published February 
22, 2012. and other LMC materials. 

______________________________ 

Below are copies of statutes applicable to the petition review process: 

_____________________________________________________________
429.021 LOCAL IMPROVEMENTS, COUNCIL POWERS. 

Subdivision 1.  Improvements authorized. 

The council of a municipality shall have power to make the following improvements: 

(1) To acquire, open, and widen any street, and to improve the same by constructing, 
reconstructing, and maintaining sidewalks, pavement, gutters, curbs, and vehicle parking 
strips of any material, or by grading, graveling, oiling, or otherwise improving the same, 
including the beautification thereof and including storm sewers or other street drainage 
and connections from sewer, water, or similar mains to curb lines. 

(2) To acquire, develop, construct, reconstruct, extend, and maintain storm and sanitary 
sewers and systems, including outlets, holding areas and ponds, treatment plants, pumps, 
lift stations, service connections, and other appurtenances of a sewer system, within and 
without the corporate limits. 

(3) To construct, reconstruct, extend, and maintain steam heating mains. 

(4) To install, replace, extend, and maintain street lights and street lighting systems and 
special lighting systems. 



 9 

(5) To acquire, improve, construct, reconstruct, extend, and maintain water works 
systems, including mains, valves, hydrants, service connections, wells, pumps, reservoirs, 
tanks, treatment plants, and other appurtenances of a water works system, within and 
without the corporate limits. 

(6) To acquire, improve and equip parks, open space areas, playgrounds, and recreational 
facilities within or without the corporate limits. 

(7) To plant trees on streets and provide for their trimming, care, and removal. 

(8) To abate nuisances and to drain swamps, marshes, and ponds on public or private 
property and to fill the same. 

(9) To construct, reconstruct, extend, and maintain dikes and other flood control works. 

(10) To construct, reconstruct, extend, and maintain retaining walls and area walls. 

(11) To acquire, construct, reconstruct, improve, alter, extend, operate, maintain, and 
promote a pedestrian skyway system. Such improvement may be made upon a petition 
pursuant to section 429.031, subdivision 3.  

(12) To acquire, construct, reconstruct, extend, operate, maintain, and promote 
underground pedestrian concourses. 

(13) To acquire, construct, improve, alter, extend, operate, maintain, and promote public 
malls, plazas or courtyards. 

(14) To construct, reconstruct, extend, and maintain district heating systems. 

(15) To construct, reconstruct, alter, extend, operate, maintain, and promote fire 
protection systems in existing buildings, but only upon a petition pursuant to section 
429.031, subdivision 3.  

(16) To acquire, construct, reconstruct, improve, alter, extend, and maintain highway 
sound barriers. 

(17) To improve, construct, reconstruct, extend, and maintain gas and electric distribution 
facilities owned by a municipal gas or electric utility. 

(18) To purchase, install, and maintain signs, posts, and other markers for addressing 
related to the operation of enhanced 911 telephone service. 

(19) To improve, construct, extend, and maintain facilities for Internet access and other 
communications purposes, if the council finds that: 



 10 

(i) the facilities are necessary to make available Internet access or other communications 
services that are not and will not be available through other providers or the private 
market in the reasonably foreseeable future; and 

(ii) the service to be provided by the facilities will not compete with service provided by 
private entities. 

(20) To assess affected property owners for all or a portion of the costs agreed to with an 
electric utility, telecommunications carrier, or cable system operator to bury or alter a 
new or existing distribution system within the public right-of-way that exceeds the 
utility's design and construction standards, or those set by law, tariff, or franchise, but 
only upon petition under section 429.031, subdivision 3.  

(21) To assess affected property owners for repayment of voluntary energy improvement 
financings under section 216C.436, subdivision 7.  

Subd. 2.  Combining improvements. 

An improvement on two or more streets or two or more types of improvement in or on 
the same street or streets or different streets may be included in one proceeding and 
conducted as one improvement. 

Subd. 3.  Relation to charter and other laws. 

When any portion of the cost of an improvement is defrayed by special assessments, the 
procedure prescribed in this chapter shall be followed unless the council determines to 
proceed under charter provisions; but this chapter does not prescribe the procedure to be 
followed by a municipality in making improvements financed without the use of special 
assessments. 

If the council determines to proceed under charter provisions for special assessments, 
such provisions shall be deemed to include a requirement that notices of proposed 
assessments inform property owners of the procedures they must follow under the charter 
in order to appeal the assessments to district court. The notices shall also inform property 
owners of the provisions of sections 435.193 to 435.195 and the existence of any 
deferment procedure established pursuant thereto in the municipality.  

Charter provisions shall also be deemed to require that when the council determines to 
make any improvement, it shall let the contract for all or part of the work, or order all or 
part of the work done by day labor or otherwise as may be authorized by the charter, no 
later than one year after the adoption of the resolution ordering such improvement, unless 
a different time limit is specifically stated in the resolution ordering the improvement. 

429.031 PRELIMINARY PLANS, HEARINGS. 

Subdivision 1.  Preparation of plans, notice of hearing. 



 11 

(a) Before the municipality awards a contract for an improvement or orders it made by 
day labor, or before the municipality may assess any portion of the cost of an 
improvement to be made under a cooperative agreement with the state or another political 
subdivision for sharing the cost of making the improvement, the council shall hold a 
public hearing on the proposed improvement following two publications in the 
newspaper of a notice stating the time and place of the hearing, the general nature of the 
improvement, the estimated cost, and the area proposed to be assessed. The two 
publications must be a week apart, and the hearing must be at least three days after the 
second publication. Not less than ten days before the hearing, notice of the hearing must 
also be mailed to the owner of each parcel within the area proposed to be assessed and 
must contain a statement that a reasonable estimate of the impact of the assessment will 
be available at the hearing, but failure to give mailed notice or any defects in the notice 
does not invalidate the proceedings. For the purpose of giving mailed notice, owners are 
those shown as owners on the records of the county auditor or, in any county where tax 
statements are mailed by the county treasurer, on the records of the county treasurer; but 
other appropriate records may be used for this purpose. For properties that are tax exempt 
or subject to taxation on a gross earnings basis and are not listed on the records of the 
county auditor or the county treasurer, the owners may be ascertained by any practicable 
means, and mailed notice must be given them as provided in this subdivision. 

(b) Before the adoption of a resolution ordering the improvement, the council shall secure 
from the city engineer or some other competent person of its selection a report advising it 
in a preliminary way as to whether the proposed improvement is necessary, cost-
effective, and feasible and as to whether it should best be made as proposed or in 
connection with some other improvement. The report must also include the estimated 
cost of the improvement as recommended. A reasonable estimate of the total amount to 
be assessed, and a description of the methodology used to calculate individual 
assessments for affected parcels, must be available at the hearing. No error or omission in 
the report invalidates the proceeding unless it materially prejudices the interests of an 
owner. 

(c) If the report is not prepared by an employee of a municipality, the compensation for 
preparing the report under this subdivision must be based on the following factors: 

(1) the time and labor required; 

(2) the experience and knowledge of the preparer; 

(3) the complexity and novelty of the problems involved; and 

(4) the extent of the responsibilities assumed. 

(d) The compensation must not be based primarily on a percentage of the estimated cost 
of the improvement. 



 12 

(e) The council may also take other steps prior to the hearing, including, among other 
things, the preparation of plans and specifications and the advertisement for bids that will 
in its judgment provide helpful information in determining the desirability and feasibility 
of the improvement. 

(f) The hearing may be adjourned from time to time, and a resolution ordering the 
improvement may be adopted at any time within six months after the date of the hearing 
by vote of a majority of all members of the council when the improvement has been 
petitioned for by the owners of not less than 35 percent in frontage of the real property 
abutting on the streets named in the petition as the location of the improvement. When 
there has been no such petition, the resolution may be adopted only by vote of four-fifths 
of all members of the council; provided that if the mayor of the municipality is a member 
of the council but has no vote or votes only in case of a tie, the mayor is not deemed to be 
a member for the purpose of determining a four-fifths majority vote. 

(g) The resolution ordering the improvement may reduce, but not increase, the extent of 
the improvement as stated in the notice of hearing. 

Subd. 2.  Approval by park board or utilities commission. 

A resolution ordering a park improvement may be adopted only by a four-fifths vote of 
the council and shall also be approved by the park board, if there is one; provided, that if 
the mayor of the municipality is a member of the council but has no vote or votes only in 
case of a tie, the mayor shall not be deemed to be a member for the purpose of 
determining such four-fifths majority vote. A resolution ordering an improvement of the 
water, sewer, steam heating, street lighting or other facility over which a utilities 
commission has jurisdiction shall also be approved by the utilities commission. 

Subd. 3.  Petition by all owners. 

Whenever all owners of real property abutting upon any street named as the location of 
any improvement shall petition the council to construct the improvement and to assess 
the entire cost against their property, the council may, without a public hearing, adopt a 
resolution determining such fact and ordering the improvement. The validity of the 
resolution shall not be questioned by any taxpayer or property owner or the municipality 
unless an action for that purpose is commenced within 30 days after adoption of the 
resolution as provided in section 429.036. Nothing herein prevents any property owner 
from questioning the amount or validity of the special assessment against the owner's 
property pursuant to section 429.081. In the case of a petition for the municipality to own 
and install a fire protection system, a pedestrian skyway system, or on-site water 
contaminant improvements, the petition must contain or be accompanied by an 
undertaking satisfactory to the city by the petitioner that the petitioner will grant the 
municipality the necessary property interest in the building to permit the city to enter 
upon the property and the building to construct, maintain, and operate the fire protection 
system, pedestrian skyway system, or on-site water contaminant improvements. In the 
case of a petition for the installation of a privately owned fire protection system, a 



 13 

privately owned pedestrian skyway system, or privately owned on-site water contaminant 
improvements, the petition shall contain the plans and specifications for the 
improvement, the estimated cost of the improvement and a statement indicating whether 
the city or the owner will contract for the construction of the improvement. If the owner 
is contracting for the construction of the improvement, the city shall not approve the 
petition until it has reviewed and approved the plans, specifications, and cost estimates 
contained in the petition. The construction cost financed under section 429.091 shall not 
exceed the amount of the cost estimate contained in the petition. In the case of a petition 
for the installation of a fire protection system, a pedestrian skyway system, or on-site 
water contaminant improvements, the petitioner may request abandonment of the 
improvement at any time after it has been ordered pursuant to subdivision 1 and before 
contracts have been awarded for the construction of the improvement under section 
429.041, subdivision 2. If such a request is received, the city council shall abandon the 
proceedings but in such case the petitioner shall reimburse the city for any and all 
expenses incurred by the city in connection with the improvement.  

429.035 IMPROVEMENTS, PETITION. 

When any petition for the making of any improvement in any statutory city, town, or city 
of the second, third, or fourth class, however organized, for the cost of which special 
assessments may be, in whole or in part, levied therefor, is presented to the governing 
body of the municipality, this body shall, by resolution, determine whether or not the 
petition has been signed by the required percentage of owners of property affected 
thereby. 



   RESOLUTION NO. 07-12        
 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY  

OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA  
 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Declaring the Insufficiency of Petition 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA: 
 
A certain petition requesting the improvement of Excelsior Boulevard between 
the West line of 21380 Excelsior Boulevard and the east line of 21170 Excelsior 
Boulevard, Greenwood, Minnesota by installing a water main, dated the 5th 
day of May, 2012, has been filed with the city clerk. Two supplemental 
petitions dated May 13, 2012 and May 14, 2012 also were filed with the city 
clerk. The Petition fails to advise that the size of the needed water main pipe for 
this improvement will be a 12-inch and not an 8-inch water main. It therefore 
fails to adequately demonstrate that the petitioners are knowingly petitioning 
for 12-inch water main. The failure to clearly state a request for a 12-inch 
water main will potentially deny the city the ability to fully assess the 
associated special benefit to the petitioners and the other affected properties. 
 
Therefore, acting pursuant to Minn. Stat. §429.035, The City Council of the 
City of Greenwood Minnesota declares the Petition dated May 5, 2012 and the 
supplemental petitions dated May 13, 2012 and May 14, 2012 for proposed 
water main improvement of Excelsior Boulevard between the West line of 
21380 Excelsior Boulevard and the east line of 21170 Excelsior Boulevard, 
Greenwood, Minnesota legally insufficient and the petition is hereby rejected.     
 

 
Adopted by the council this __ day of July, 2012. 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Debra J. Kind, Mayor 
________________________________________ 
Gus Karpas, City Clerk 
 
1\RESOLUTION  1B 



   RESOLUTION NO. 15-12        
 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY  

OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA  
 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Declaring Adequacy of Petition and Ordering Preparation of Report 
and City Planning Commission Review for Compliance with the 

City Land Use Plan 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA: 
 

1. A certain petition requesting the improvement of Excelsior Boulevard 
between the West line of 21380 Excelsior Boulevard and the east line 
of 21170 Excelsior Boulevard, Greenwood, Minnesota by installing a 
water main, dated June 13, 2012 and filed with the council on the 
13th day of June, 2012, is hereby declared to be signed by the 
required percentage of owners of property affected thereby.  This 
declaration is made in conformity to Minn. Stat. §429.035.   

2. The petition for proposed improvement (hereinafter Improvement 
No. 1) is hereby referred to City Engineer David Martini of Bolton & 
Menk and that person is instructed to report to the council with all 
convenient speed advising the council in a preliminary way as to 
whether the proposed improvement is necessary, cost-effective, and 
feasible; whether it should best be made as proposed or in connection 
with some other improvement; the estimated cost of the improvement 
as recommended; and a description of the methodology used to 
calculate individual assessments for affected parcels.  In preparing 
said report, the City Engineer shall consult with the City Engineer of 
Excelsior, and Metropolitan Council representatives as necessary. 

3. The City Planning Commission with the benefit of the advice of the 
City Engineer and the City Attorney shall review the proposed capital 
improvement and report in writing to the Council its findings as to 
compliance of Improvement No. 1 with the Comprehensive Municipal 
Plan, as required by Minn. Stat. §462.356. 

 
Adopted by the council this ____ day of July, 2012. 

 
       _________________________________ 
       Debra J. Kind, Mayor 
________________________________________ 
Gus Karpas, City Clerk 
 
1\RESOLUTION  1 



   RESOLUTION NO. 15-12        
 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY  

OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA  
 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Declaring the Insufficiency of Petition 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA: 
 

1. A certain petition requesting the improvement of Excelsior Boulevard 
between the West line of 21380 Excelsior Boulevard and the east line 
of 21170 Excelsior Boulevard, Greenwood, Minnesota by installing a 
water main, filed with the council ___ day of __________________, 2012, 
fails to adequately describe the extent of the improvement requested 
and therefore the required percentage of owners of the property 
affected thereby cannot be determined.   

2. Pursuant to Minn. Stat. §429.035 said petition for proposed water 
main improvement is hereby declared legally inadequate. 

 
Adopted by the council this ____ day of June, 2012. 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Debra J. Kind, Mayor 
________________________________________ 
Gus Karpas, City Clerk 
 
1\RESOLUTION  1A 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 6B 

Agenda Date: 07-05-12 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Resolution 16-12, Variance Findings of Fact, Keith and Stacy Carlson, 20965 Channel Drive 
(deck variance) 
 
Summary: Based on verbal findings at the 06-06-12 meeting the council approved the variance requests from Keith and 
Stacy Carlson to encroach into the lakeside setback and exceed the permitted hardcover to construct a deck addition. The 
council directed that written findings be drafted for confirmation by the council. The attached findings were drafted by the 
city attorney. 

Council Action: Required. Suggested motions … 

1. I move the council approves resolution 16-12 setting out the findings of fact and conclusions of law regarding 
the Keith and Stacy Carlson deck addition variance requests. 

2. I move the council approves resolution 16-12 setting out the findings of fact and conclusions of law regarding 
the Keith and Stacy Carlson deck addition variance requests with the following revisions: ________________. 

	  



 

 1 

  RESOLUTION NO. 16-12        
 
 RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY  

OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA ACTING AS THE  
BOARD OF APPEALS AND ADJUSTMENTS 

 
______________________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                          

 
APPROVING 

 
IN RE: The Application of Keith and Stacey Carlson for a Variance to 
Section 1120.10 to: 
 

Permit an expanded lakeside deck which would encroach into the 
required lake yard setback and exceed the maximum permitted 
impervious surface area. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

WHEREAS, Keith and Stacey Carlson are the owners of property 
commonly known as 20965 Channel Drive, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID 
No. 26-117-23-44-0025); and 
 

WHEREAS, application was made for the above-stated variance to 
Section 1120.10 so as to permit an expanded lakeside deck which would 
encroach into the required lake yard setback and exceed the maximum 
permitted impervious surface area; and 
 

WHEREAS, notice of Public Hearing was published, notice given to 
neighboring property owners, and a Public Hearing held before the Planning 
Commission to consider the application; and 
 
 WHEREAS, public comment was taken at the Public Hearing before the 
Planning Commission on April 18, 2012 and May 16, 2012; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Greenwood has received the 
staff report, the recommendation of the Planning Commission, and considered 
the application, the comments of the applicant and the comments of the public. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Greenwood, 
Minnesota acting as the Board of Appeals and Adjustments does hereby make 
the following: 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

1. That the real property located at 21780 Fairview Street, Greenwood, 



 

 2 

Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-31-0025) is a single family lot of  
record located within the R-1A Single Family Residential District. The 
westerly and northerly yards of the subject property abut Lake 
Minnetonka. 

 
2.      The applicant proposes to expand an existing non-conforming lakeside 

deck.  In May the applicant proposed and was granted variances to (1) 
add a fireplace to the northerly side of the house which would be 
cantilevered and project lakeward 1.5 feet and; (2) add a covered 
entryway to the easterly side of the house.   

 
3.      Section 1120:15 of the Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum lake yard 

setback of fifty (50) feet from the Ordinary High Water Level (OHWL) 
along the north property line.  The survey submitted by the applicants 
indicates the proposed deck alteration would be set back forty-three (43) 
feet from the OHWL.  As presented, the applicant requires a variance of 
seven (7) feet of the required lake yard setback. 

 
4.      Section 1176:04(3) permits a maximum impervious surface area of 30% 

in the Shoreland District.  The survey submitted by the applicants 
indicates the proposed impervious surface area on the property is 36.2%.  
As presented, the applicants require a variance to exceed the maximum 
permitted impervious surface area by 6.2%. 

 
5.      In conjunction with the variances granted in May, (described at ¶ 2 

above), the Applicant proposed to reduce existing impervious hardcover 
from 39.37% to 35.7%, which the city accepted as a condition of those 
variance grants. Thereby establishing 35.7% as the permitted amount of 
impervious hardcover for the lot.   

 
6.      The findings of Greenwood Resolution No. 11-12 adopted June 6, 2012 

relative to the above described Carlson variance requests are adopted as 
if setout hereat in full. 

 
7.       The applicants state that the existing non-conforming deck is in need of 

replacement as built and that, with the exception of a widened rebuilt 
stair (to be expanded from 3 ft to 4 ft in width), the proposed deck 
addition will be built wholly outside of the required 50 ft lake yard 
setback.  The stair encroaches on the lakeside yard setback and its 
widening, needed for utility and safety will add marginally to that 
encroachment.  

 
8.      The Applicants assert that the practical difficulty in meeting the lakeside 

yard setback is created by the need for added utility and safety provided 
by a 4 ft verses the in place non-conforming 3 ft stair.  The 



 

 3 

reasonableness of the request is set by Greenwood Ordinance Section 
1176.04 which allows 4 ft wide stairs within the shoreland and lake yard 
setbacks for residential properties.  The essential character of the locality 
will not change if the variance is granted. 

 
9.     The Planning Commission voted to recommend the City Council approve 

the variance request.   
 
10.     The City council determined that (1) the property is a legal non-

conforming use, (2) the variance if granted would be in keeping with the 
spirit and intent of the Zoning Code, (3) the proposed stair rebuild/width 
expansion is a normal and expected use of a residential property, (4) the 
plight of the owner (inadequate lakeside yard set back) is due to 
circumstances unique to the property and not created by the landowner, 
necessitated by needed added utility and safety afforded by a marginally 
wider stair and (5) the variance if granted will not alter the essential 
character of the locality. 

 
11.    In light of the variances granted to these Applicants in May 2012, the 

proposed increase in hardcover from 35.7% to 36.2%, has not been 
demonstrated to be in keeping with the spirit and intent of the Zoning 
Code; or a normal and expected use of a residential property; or that the 
plight of the owner (needed hardcover) is due to circumstances unique to 
the property and not created by the landowner, or that the variance if 
granted will not alter the essential character of the locality. 

 
12.    The grant of the additional impervious surfacing is therefore not in the 

public interest and should be left at a maximum of 35.7% as earlier 
permitted.   

 
 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 

Based upon the foregoing Findings of Fact, The city Council makes the 
following Conclusions of Law: 
 

1. A variance from Section 1120.15; minimum required lake yard 
setback along the westerly property line, for the proposed setback 
compliant deck addition and non-conforming stair width expansion, 
from 3 ft to 4 ft, should be granted subject to condition of total lot 
impervious surface hardcover being not more than 35.7%. 

2. The variance from 1176:04(3) to permit a maximum impervious 
surface area of 36.2% is denied. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 



 

 4 

Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of Appeals and Adjustments: 
 

1. That a variance to Greenwood Ordinance Code Section 1120.10; 50 foot 
lake yard setback along the north property line, to accommodate the 
proposed widened staircase, from 3 ft to 4 ft, is granted. 

 
The grant of said variance is subject to the following condition: 

 
 A. When the proposed improvement is complete, the property shall 

have impervious surface hardcover of no more than 35.7% as 
verified by as-built survey to be submitted by applicant in a timely 
manner to the City Clerk.   

 
2. That a variance to Greenwood Ordinance Code Section 1176.04(3) to 

increase impervious surface from 35.7% to 36.2% is denied.   
 
PASSED THIS  ____ DAY OF JULY, 2012 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA ACTING AS THE BOARD OF APPEALS AND 
ADJUSTMENTS FOR THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA. 
 
_____ Ayes, _____  Nays 
      CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
ATTEST:     By __________________________________ 
                Debra J. Kind, Mayor        
_________________________________ 
Gus Karpas, Clerk/Administrator 
 
1\RESOLU.CarlsonKeith2.Approving 

 

 

 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 6B 

Agenda Date: 07-05-12 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Resolution 17-12, Conditional Use Permit Findings of Fact, Keith and Stacy Carlson, 20965 
Channel Drive (to exceed the annual permitted significant tree harvest) 
 
Summary: Based on verbal findings at the 06-06-12 meeting, the council approved the conditional use permit request 
from Keith and Stacy Carlson to exceed the annual permitted significant tree harvest. The council directed that written 
findings be drafted for confirmation by the council. The attached findings were drafted by the city attorney. 

Council Action: Required. Suggested motions … 

1. I move the council approves resolution 17-12 setting out the findings of fact and conclusions of law regarding 
the Keith and Stacy Carlson tree harvest conditional use permit request. 

2. I move the council approves resolution 17-12 setting out the findings of fact and conclusions of law regarding 
the Keith and Stacy Carlson tree harvest conditional use permit request with the following revisions: 
________________. 

	  



 

 1 

  RESOLUTION NO. 17-12         
 
 RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY  

OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA ACTING AS THE  
BOARD OF APPEALS AND ADJUSTMENTS 

 
______________________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                          

 
APPROVING 

 
IN RE: The Application of Keith and Stacey Carlson for a Conditional Use 

permit under Sections 1140:80/1150:20 to permit removal of five 
(5) “significant” trees within the Shore Impact Zone. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

WHEREAS, Keith and Stacey Carlson are the owners of property 
commonly known as 20965 Channel Drive, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID 
No. 26-117-23-44-0025); and 
 
WHEREAS, application was made for a Conditional Use permit under Sections 
1140:80/1150:20 to permit removal of five (5) “significant” trees within the 
Shore Impact Zone; and 
 

WHEREAS, notice of Public Hearing was published, notice given to 
neighboring property owners, and a Public Hearing held before the Planning 
Commission to consider the application; and 
 
 WHEREAS, public comment was taken at the Public Hearing before the 
Planning Commission on May 16, 2012; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Greenwood has received the 
staff report, the recommendation of the Planning Commission, and considered 
the application, the comments of the applicant and the comments of the public. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Greenwood, 
Minnesota acting as the Board of Appeals and Adjustments does hereby make 
the following: 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

1. That the real property located at 21780 Fairview Street, Greenwood, 
Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-31-0025) is a single family lot of  
record located within the R-1A Single Family Residential District. The 
westerly and northerly yards of the subject property abut Lake 
Minnetonka. 



 

 2 

 
2.      The applicant proposes to remove eight trees, 5 of which are “significant” 

trees under Section 1140:80 and are located within the Shore Impact 
Zone, (the twenty–five feet back from the OHWL). Code permits removal 
of 2 significant trees per lot per year and allows a conditional use permit 
to remove up to five significant trees which may be issued no more than 
once every five years. 

 
3.       The City Arborist has reviewed and approved the amended tree 

harvesting plan, which reflects Planning Commission concerns. 
 
4.      Under Section 1150: 20, the council may authorize a conditional use by 

resolution provided the evidence presented is such as to establish: 
(a) That the proposed use will comply with the regulations specified in 

the ordinance for the district in which the proposed use is to be 
located. 

(b) That the use is one of the conditional uses permitted for the 
district in which it is to be located. 

(c) The use will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, 
safety, comfort, convenience or general welfare of the neighborhood 
or city. 

(d) The use will be harmonious with the objectives of the comp plan. 
(e) The use will not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future 

neighboring uses. 
(f) The use will be served adequately by essential public facilities and 

services, including streets, police and fire protection, drainage 
structures, refuse disposal, sewer, schools, or will be served 
adequately by such facilities and services provided by the persons 
or agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed use. 

(g) The use will not create excessive additional requirements at public 
cost for public facilities and services and will not be detrimental to 
the economic welfare of the community. 

(h) The use will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, 
equipment, and conditions of operation that will be detrimental to 
any persons, property or the general welfare because of excessive 
production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors. 

(i) The use will have vehicular approaches to the property that do not 
create traffic congestion or interfere with traffic on surrounding 
public thoroughfares. 

(j) The use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of a 
natural, scenic or historic feature of major importance. 

(k) The use will not depreciate surrounding property values. 
 

The council may impose such conditions and safeguards upon the 
premises benefited by a conditional use permit as may be necessary to 



 

 3 

prevent injurious effects therefrom upon other properties in the 
neighborhood. 

 
5.      The Council finds that the requested Tree Harvesting CUP, if granted,  

meets the standards of Section 1150:20 set forth above, including:  
(a) the use will comply with the regulations specified in the ordinance,  
(b) the use will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, 

safety, comfort, convenience or general welfare of the neighborhood 
or city, and  

(c) the use will not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future 
neighboring uses. 

        
6.      The Planning Commission has reviewed the tree harvesting plan and 

voted to recommend the City Council approve the Tree Harvesting CUP 
request. 

 
7.      The Council finds that it is appropriate that the requested Tree 

Harvesting CUP, if granted, should include a condition that addresses 
the need for the property owner to anticipate the future loss/removal of 
the existing Silver Maple on the westerly side of the house and plan for 
its replacement with a 3-inch deciduous hardwood tree. 

 
8.      To shield the house from the lake, the Council finds that it is appropriate 

that the requested Tree Harvesting CUP, if granted, should include a 
condition that one large hardwood tree be added on the south side of the 
lot towards the lake west of the Dwarf Korean Larch on the proposed tree 
planting plan.  

 
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

 
Based upon the foregoing Findings of Fact, The city Council makes the 
following Conclusions of Law: 
 

1. A conditional use permit under Section 1140:80/1150:20 should be 
granted subject to the conditions (1) that no more than 5 significant 
trees be removed and no more than 8 trees in all as proposed, (2) that 
one large hardwood tree be planted on the southside of the lot 
towards the lake west of the Dwarf Korean Larch, and (3) that if the 
existing Silver Maple tree dies or is removed, a 3-inch deciduous 
hardwood tree will be planted close to the location of the existing 
Silver Maple.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of Appeals and Adjustments: 
 



 

 4 

1. That a conditional use permit under Greenwood Ordinance Code Section 
1140:80/1150:20 is granted subject to the conditions (1) that no more 
than 5 significant trees be removed and no more than 8 trees in all as 
proposed, (2) that one large hardwood tree be planted on the southside of 
the lot towards the lake west of the Dwarf Korean Larch, and (3) that if 
the existing Silver Maple tree dies or is removed, a 3-inch deciduous 
hardwood tree will be planted close to the location of the existing Silver 
Maple.   

 
 
PASSED THIS  ____ DAY OF JULY, 2012 BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA ACTING AS THE BOARD OF APPEALS AND 
ADJUSTMENTS FOR THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA. 
 
_____ Ayes, _____  Nays 
      CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
ATTEST:     By __________________________________ 
                Debra J. Kind, Mayor        
_________________________________ 
Gus Karpas, Clerk/Administrator 
 
1\RESOLU.CarlsonKeith3.Approving 

 

 

 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 6D 

Agenda Date: 07-05-12 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Second reading of ordinance 210, Amending Code Section 310.30, Subd. 5(d) and (f), Use of Sewers (to 
authorize the council to institute programs to ensure compliance with ordinances that prohibit discharge of clean water 
into the sanitary sewer system) 
 
Summary: At the 02-01-12 council meeting the council discussed the possibility of conducting a new “sump pump 
program” to reduce the amount of money the city is paying to treat clean water. The last sump pump program was 
conducted in 2006. At that time it is believed that each property owner was asked to complete a form to certify that their 
sump pump was not hooked up to the sewer system, but there was no follow up with the properties that did not return the 
certification form. If the council desires to conduct a new “sump pump program,” section 310.30 of the code would need to 
be revised. 
 

At the 04-04-12 council meeting the council received input from the city engineer and from Bill Cook (Greenwood resident, 
planning commissioner, and Met Council manager of engineering services). Based on the 04-04-12 discussion, the 
council directed that an ordinance be drafted to conduct a new “sump pump program.” The ordinance has been reviewed 
by the city attorney.  
 
At the 06-06-12 council meeting the council approved the first reading of the ordinance and directed that paragraph (ii) be 
revised to delete language about “failure to comply” being a misdemeanor. Copies of a redlined and clean version of the 
ordinance are attached. 
 
Council Action: None required. Possible motions … 
 

1. I move the council approves the first reading of ordinance 210 as written. 
2. I move the council approves the first reading of ordinance 210 with the following changes ______. 
3. Do nothing. 



ORDINANCE NO. 210 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA 
AMENDING GREENWOOD ORDINANCE CODE SECTION 310.30, SUBD. 5(D) and (F), USE OF SEWERS  

TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNCIL TO INSTITUTE PROGRAMS TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH ORDINANCES THAT 
PROHIBIT DISCHARGE OF CLEAN WATER INTO THE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA DOES ORDAIN: 

 

SECTION 1. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 310.30. Use of Sewers, Subd. 5(d) is amended to read as follows:  

 

 “(d) From time to time the city council may institute the following procedure to ensure compliance with section 310 et seq. 
subdivision 5: 
(i)  A sanitary sewer discharge certification letter with a return certification form shall be sent to every person owning 

improved real estate property that discharges into the city’s sanitary sewer system. 
(ii)  Property owners must return the completed certification form within 14 days of the certification letter notification 

date. Failure to return a fully completed certification form within 14 days of the certification letter notification date 
shall be a misdemeanor and subject the property owner to prosecution as permitted in paragraph (h) below.  In 
addition, Any property owner that does not return a fully completed certification form by the deadline will incur a 
surcharge fee on their quarterly sewer utility bill as established in subsection (f) and set forth in chapter 5. 

(iii)  If a property owner requests assistance in completing the certification form or an inspection to determine where 
roof drains, foundation drains, or sump pumps feed, the inspection will be provided at no cost to the property 
owner. 

(iv)  If a property owner declares they have roof drains, foundation drains, or sump pumps that are connected to the 
sanitary sewer, they shall have 90 days from the date of mailing of the city's sanitary sewer discharge certification 
letter to remove all such connections. 

(v)  If a property owner certifies that their property has no roof drains, foundation drains, or sump pumps connected to 
the sanitary sewer system and it subsequently is discovered that the property is not in compliance with this code 
or otherwise has unlawful discharges, the property owner shall be back-charged to the date of the completed 
certification form on file, a surcharge fee, double that provided in paragraph (ii) above, shall be assessed, and 
prosecution for violation of this code, (as permitted in paragraph (h) below), may follow.” 

 

SECTION 2. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 310.30. Use of Sewers, Subd. 5(f) is amended to read as follows:  

 “(f) A sewer non-compliance surcharge fee per quarter is hereby imposed and shall be added to every residential and 
commercial property utility billing issued to property owners who are found not in compliance with this section. The 
sewer non-compliance surcharge fee amount shall be determined by the city council and set forth in chapter 5 of this 
code book. If a property owner certifies that their property is in compliance and it subsequently is discovered that they 
were not in compliance, the property owner will be back-charged to the date of certification and the surcharge fee will 
double.” 

 

SECTION 3. 
Effective Date. This ordinance shall be effective upon publication according to law. 

 

Enacted by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota this ___ day of _____________, 2012. 
 

There were ____ AYES and ____ NAYS as follows: 
 
Greenwood City Council YEAS NAYS ABSTAIN ABSENT 
     

Mayor Debra Kind     
Councilman Tom Fletcher     
Councilman H. Kelsey Page     
Councilman Bob Quam     
Councilman William (Biff) Rose     
     

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 

 

By: _____________________________________  
Debra J. Kind, Mayor  
 
Attest: __________________________________ 
Gus E. Karpas, City Clerk 



 
First reading: _____, 2012 
Second reading: _____, 2012 
Publication: _____, 2012 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 210 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA 
AMENDING GREENWOOD ORDINANCE CODE SECTION 310.30, SUBD. 5(D) and (F), USE OF SEWERS  

TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNCIL TO INSTITUTE PROGRAMS TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH ORDINANCES THAT 
PROHIBIT DISCHARGE OF CLEAN WATER INTO THE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA DOES ORDAIN: 

 

SECTION 1. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 310.30. Use of Sewers, Subd. 5(d) is amended to read as follows:  
“(d) From time to time the city council may institute the following procedure to ensure compliance with section 310 et seq.  
 subdivision 5: 

(i)  A sanitary sewer discharge certification letter with a return certification form shall be sent to every person owning 
improved real estate property that discharges into the city’s sanitary sewer system. 

(ii)  Property owners must return the completed certification form within 14 days of the certification letter notification 
date. Any property owner that does not return a fully completed certification form by the deadline will incur a 
surcharge fee on their quarterly sewer utility bill as established in subsection (f) and set forth in chapter 5. 

(iii)  If a property owner requests assistance in completing the certification form or an inspection to determine where 
roof drains, foundation drains, or sump pumps feed, the inspection will be provided at no cost to the property 
owner. 

(iv)  If a property owner declares they have roof drains, foundation drains, or sump pumps that are connected to the 
sanitary sewer, they shall have 90 days from the date of mailing of the city's sanitary sewer discharge certification 
letter to remove all such connections. 

(v)  If a property owner certifies that their property has no roof drains, foundation drains, or sump pumps connected to 
the sanitary sewer system and it subsequently is discovered that the property is not in compliance with this code 
or otherwise has unlawful discharges, the property owner shall be back-charged to the date of the completed 
certification form on file, a surcharge fee, double that provided in paragraph (ii) above, shall be assessed, and 
prosecution for violation of this code, (as permitted in paragraph (h) below), may follow.” 

 

SECTION 2. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 310.30. Use of Sewers, Subd. 5(f) is amended to read as follows:  
 “(f) A sewer non-compliance surcharge fee per quarter is hereby imposed and shall be added to every residential and 

commercial property utility billing issued to property owners who are found not in compliance with this section. The 
sewer non-compliance surcharge fee amount shall be determined by the city council and set forth in chapter 5 of this 
code book. If a property owner certifies that their property is in compliance and it subsequently is discovered that they 
were not in compliance, the property owner will be back-charged to the date of certification and the surcharge fee will 
double.” 

 

SECTION 3. 
Effective Date. This ordinance shall be effective upon publication according to law. 
Enacted by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota this ___ day of _____________, 2012. 

 

There were ____ AYES and ____ NAYS as follows: 
 
Greenwood City Council YEAS NAYS ABSTAIN ABSENT 
     

Mayor Debra Kind     
Councilman Tom Fletcher     
Councilman H. Kelsey Page     
Councilman Bob Quam     
Councilman William (Biff) Rose     
     

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 

 

By: _____________________________________  
Debra J. Kind, Mayor  
 
Attest: __________________________________ 
Gus E. Karpas, City Clerk 
 

First reading: _____, 2012 
Second reading: _____, 2012 
Publication: _____, 2012 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 7A 

Agenda Date: 07-05-12 

 
 
 

 
Agenda Item: Consider Variance Request, Matt and Angela Lindberg, 5160 Greenwood Circle 
 

Summary:	  Matt and Angela Lindberg are proposing a landscaping project which includes the relocation of retaining walls 
and an alteration of grade in their rear yard. The proposed grade alteration includes digging back into the hill in the rear of 
the property and relocating the existing retaining walls to help with drainage and enlarge the rear yard. 
 

Section 1140.19(5) states that with the exception of that portion of a lot host to the foundation of a permitted structure and 
or driveways and necessary stormwater management, the pre-grading permit topography of a lot shall not be altered by 
the addition of fill or the removal of fill or by grading so as to increase of decrease the elevation of the land within any one 
hundred square foot area of the lot by more than one vertical foot. An exception to this standard may not be granted by 
condition use permit. 
 

The city engineer has reviewed the proposal and required additional review of the drainage, stormwater pollution 
prevention plan and structure engineering for the proposed retaining walls. The engineer has reviewed this additional 
information and his comments are attached. 
 

In reviewing this request the city council must consider the criteria outlined in section 1155.10 of the ordinance: 
 

 Practical Difficulty Standard 
 (a) That the property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by the zoning ordinance; 
 (b) The plight of the homeowner is due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the landowner: 
 (c) The variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. 
 

Economic considerations alone shall not constitute practical difficulties. 
  

 Findings 
 (a) Is the variance in harmony with the purpose and intent of the ordinance? 
 (b) Is the variance consistent with the comprehensive plan? 
 (c) Does the proposal put property to use in a reasonable manner? 
 (d) Are there unique circumstances to the property not created by the landowner? 
 (e) Will the variance, if granted, alter the essential character of the locality? 
 

Planning Commission Action: Motion by Chairman Lucking to recommend the city council approves the variance 
request to alter the grade greater than one vertical foot in conjunction with a rear yard landscaping project. The 
maximum extent of the grade alteration would be a difference of the grade by thirteen vertical feet, as presented. 
A practical difficulty exists in the existing grade of the property which allows drainage from Highview Place to 
settle between the existing retaining wall and house rendering the rear yard of the property unusable. The motion 
is conditioned that the city engineer provide a greater review of the proposal and provide a report to the Council 
which includes an analysis of the proposed drain tile profile, structural characteristics and a review of the 
hydrostatic pressure behind the wall. The applicant must also include some type of safety fencing at the top of 
the wall in their design. Paeper seconded the motion. Motion carried 5-0. 
 

Council Action: Action required by July 14, 2012. Possible motions … 
1. I move the council approves (or denies) the variance request by Matt and Angela Lindberg to alter the existing 

grade on their property by thirteen feet as part of a landscaping project to improve drainage on their property and 
enlarge their rear yard as presented (or with the following conditions: ______), based on the following findings 
(must be in writing if denial): ______________. I further move that the council directs the city attorney to draft 
findings of fact for the council’s consideration at the August 1, 2012 council meeting. 

2. I move the council asks the applicant to provide written approval for a further extension of the time limit for action 
to __________, 2012 for the following reason(s): ____________.   

 
Note: MN statue 15.99 requires a council decision within 60 days. The council may approve or modify a request based on verbal findings of fact and the 
applicant may proceed with their project. However, if the council denies the request, the council must state in writing the reasons for denial at the time 
that it denies the request. The council may extend the 60-day time limit by providing written notice to the applicant including the reason for the extension 
and its anticipated length (may not exceed 60 additional days unless approved by the applicant in writing). 





























 
 

 

June 26, 2012 

 

City of Greenwood 

Attn:  Gus Karpas 

20225 Cottagewood Road 

Deephaven, MN  55331 

 

RE: Retaining Wall Plan Review #2  

 5160 Greenwood Circle 

  

Dear Mr. Karpas: 

 

As requested, we have reviewed the Planning Commission motion regarding the construction of a retaining 

wall in the rear yard of 5160 Greenwood Circle.  The motion was conditioned that “the City Engineer 

provide a greater review of the proposal and provide a report to the Council which includes an analysis of the 

proposed drain tile profile, structural characteristics and a review of the hydrostatic pressure behind the wall.  

The applicant must also include some type of safety fencing at the top of the wall in their design”.  We offer 

the following observations, comments, and recommendations for your consideration: 

 

1. During our initial review, we examined the Typical Wall Section Detail.  The detail shows a 12” wide 

crushed stone drainage zone with 4” drain tile behind the wall.  Outlets for the drain tile will be placed at 

20’ on center and low points.  We believe this will provide adequate drainage behind the wall. 

2. The proposed boulder wall was designed by a licensed Civil Engineer as a gravity wall, using safety 

factors of 1.5 for overturning, 1.5 for sliding, and 2.0 for bearing.  We believe this is an adequate 

structural design. 

3. If the City has additional concerns about the proposed wall regarding hydrostatic pressure, the applicant 

should be required to provide additional analysis for review. 

4. We agree that a safety fence should be placed at the top of the wall due to the close proximity of the 

adjacent Highview Place cul-de-sac.  Details of the fence should be submitted to the City for review. 

 

Please let me know if you have any questions or need additional information. 

 

Sincerely, 

BOLTON & MENK, INC. 

 
Robert E. Bean, Jr, P.E. 

Water Resources Engineer 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 7B 

Agenda Date: 07-05-12 

 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: First Reading: Ordinance 212 Amending Code Section 425, Municipal Watercraft Spaces 
(establishing procedures for canoe racks) 
 
Summary:	  At the 05-16-12 planning commission / city council joint worksession, Kristi Conrad suggested the idea of 
installing a canoe rack at the Meadville boat launch. The consensus of the group was that it would be a good idea and 
that the council should consider the topic at the 06-06-12 council meeting. 
 
At the 06-06-12 council meeting, the council agreed the placement of the racks would benefit the residents of the city and 
asked staff to direct public works to construct a six-space canoe rack and draft an ordinance for the council’s review.  
Attached is the ordinance with the amendments to the relevant provisions within section 425 of the city code. This 
ordinance has been reviewed by the city attorney. Also attached is a redlined document showing the proposed changes in 
the context of section 425 of the city code book.  
 
If the council approves the first reading of the ordinance at the July meeting, the ordinance will be placed on the August 
agenda for a second reading. After that the ordinance needs to be published in the designated newspaper before it goes 
into effect. Therefore, the soonest the ordinance will be effective will be August 9, 2012. 
 
Council Action: No action required. Possible motions … 

 
1. I move the council approves the first reading of Ordinance 212, amending Greenwood Code Section 425 

regulating the use of canoe racks at the Meadville Boat Launch.  
 

2. I move the council approves the first reading of Ordinance 212, amending Greenwood Code Section 425 
regulating the use of canoe racks at the Meadville Boat Launch with the following revisions: ______________.  

 
3. Do nothing. 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 212 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA AMENDING  
GREENWOOD ORDINANCE CODE SECTION 425 TO ESTABLISH PROCEDURES FOR CANOE RACKS  

 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA DOES ORDAIN: 

 
SECTION 1. 
The heading for Greenwood ordinance code section 425 is amended to read as follows:  
 

“SECTION 425. MUNICIPAL WATERCRAFT SPACES.” 
 
SECTION 2. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 425.00 purpose statement is amended to read as follows: 
 

“The city maintains municipal docks, sailboat slips, and canoe racks on and adjacent to Lake Minnetonka to provide 
watercraft facilities primarily for residents of the city who do not own lakeshore properties.” 
 
SECTION 3. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 425.10 is amended to read as follows:  
 

“Space permits for the St. Alban’s Bay municipal docks, Meadville sailboat slips, and Meadville canoe racks are granted 
based on the following priority schedule: 

1. First Priority: Off-shore Greenwood residents immediate past watercraft space permit holders. 
2.  Second Priority: Off-shore Greenwood residents on the waiting list. 
3.  Third Priority: Lakeshore Greenwood residents immediate past watercraft space permit holders. 
4. Fourth Priority: Lakeshore Greenwood residents on the waiting list. 
5. Fifth Priority: Non-residents.” 
 
SECTION 4. 
The introductory sentence and paragraph (a) of Greenwood ordinance code section 425.15 is amended to read as 
follows: 
 

“The following outlines the process for issuance of watercraft space permits: 
 

(a)  Get on the waiting list: Residents and non-residents must complete a "waiting list" application and deliver by mail or in 
person to the city clerk who will put up to 2 names per household per position on the appropriate waiting list in the 
order they are received. Separate lists will be maintained for the St. Alban’s Bay docks, Meadville sailboat slips, and 
Meadville canoe rack locations for the 5 priority categories listed in section 425.10.  An address is allowed to appear 
only once per waiting list. Once a household is assigned a watercraft space, the address may not appear on the same 
waiting list. Waiting list applications for the Meadville canoe rack spaces will be accepted beginning _________, 2012 
at 8 a.m.” 

 
SECTION 5. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 425.15 (e) is amended to read as follows: 
 

“(e) Open spaces assigned to waiting list: The city clerk will offer remaining open spaces to the person(s) at the top of the 
waiting list in writing. New permittees must complete the application requirements in section 425.25 within 10 days of 
the date on the notification letter. Failure to meet the 10-day deadline shall be treated the same as if the space was 
declined. If the person(s) at the top position on the waiting list declines to take a watercraft space, their name(s) shall 
go to the bottom of the waiting list, and the offer will to go to the next person(s) on the list. If more than one space 
opens up in a given year, a letter (A, B, C, etc.) is added to the year for seniority purposes. The letter corresponds to 
the order the new permittee’s name appeared on the waiting list.” 

 
SECTION 6. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 425.25 paragraphs (c), (d), and (e) are amended to read as follows: 
 

“(c)  Submit a photocopy of the watercraft title and registration card indicating that at least one of the applicants is the 
owner of the watercraft. Maximum of 2 names (both must reside at the same residence) may appear on the title and 
registration card. If a watercraft does not have a title or registration card, this requirement may be waived and 
alternate satisfactory proof of ownership will need to be presented. 

(d)  Provide a complete description of the watercraft including make, model, length (St. Alban’s Bay dock maximum 23 ft.), 
beam (St. Alban’s Bay dock maximum of 8.5 ft.), and Minnesota Department of Natural Resources (DNR) registration 
number. Note: Immediate past St. Alban’s Bay dock permit holders whose watercraft identified on their 1997 
watercraft space permit violates the size requirements of this paragraph shall not be denied renewal of the permit for 



non-conformance of the same watercraft. If a watercraft does not have a DNR registration number, this requirement 
may be waived and alternate satisfactory proof of ownership will need to be presented.  

(e)  All watercraft space permit holders must sign an acknowledgement that they assume all risks associated with use of a 
city-provided watercraft space.” 

 
SECTION 7. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 425.26 is created to read as follows: 
 

“Section 425.26. Additional Provisions for Canoe Rack Spaces. 
 

(a) Canoe rack permit holders may place one canoe, or one kayak, or up to two paddleboards within their designated 
space provided that doing so does not impede the usage of adjacent spaces. 

(b) Private locks may be used to secure watercraft, but must be removed by October 15.”  
 
SECTION 8. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 425.30 subdivision 5 is amended to read as follows: 
 

“Subd. 5. Fees. Fees paid in conjunction with the issuance of a permit are non-refundable. Watercraft space permit fees 
shall be established, from time to time by the city council and set forth in chapter 5 of this code. Fees may be prorated for 
permits issued mid-season.” 
 
SECTION 9. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 425.30 subdivisions 7 and 8 are amended to read as follows: 
 

 “Subd. 7. Final Decisions. All determinations by the city clerk relating to prioritization of the waiting lists, the issuance of 
permits, and space assignments shall be final. 
 
Subd. 8. Limit on Permits. No more than 1 watercraft space permit may be issued per individual per boating season and 
no more than 1 watercraft space may be issued per single-family residence / applicant.” 
 
SECTION 10. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 425.30 subdivision 11 is amended to read as follows: 
 

 “Subd. 11. Quiet Enjoyment. No person, permittee, or watercraft operator shall disturb the quiet enjoyment of municipal  
watercraft spaces by other persons, permittees, or the general public in or about any watercraft space, nor otherwise 
obstruct the use of watercraft spaces nor allow a watercraft owned, operated, or under their control, to go unattended or 
improperly tied or secured. A violation of this paragraph shall be a misdemeanor.” 
 
SECTION 11. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 425.30 subdivision 13 is amended to read as follows: 
 

 “Subd. 13. Watercraft Parking and Beaching. Only permittees are allowed to park watercraft at municipal docks slips, or 
racks. No watercraft is allowed to beach or pull up on municipal shoreline.” 
 
SECTION 12. 
Effective Date. This ordinance shall be effective upon publication according to law. 
 
Enacted by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota this ___ day of ____, 2012. 
 
There were __ AYES and __ NAYS as follows: 
 
Greenwood City Council YEAS NAYS ABSTAIN ABSENT 
     

Mayor Debra Kind     
Councilman Tom Fletcher     
Councilman H. Kelsey Page     
Councilman Bob Quam     
Councilman William (Biff) Rose     
     

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________  
Debra J. Kind, Mayor  
 



 
Attest: __________________________________ 
Gus E. Karpas, City Clerk 
 
First reading: _____, 2012 
Second reading: _____, 2012 
Publication: _____, 2012 

 



CURRENT GREENWOOD CODE WITH PROPOSED CHANGES 

 

SECTION 425. MUNICIPAL DOCKS WATERCRAFT SPACES. 
Section 425.00. Purpose.  
The city maintains municipal docks, sailboat slips, and canoe racks on and adjacent to Lake Minnetonka to provide 
watercraft for docking facilities primarily for residents of the city who do not own lakeshore properties. 

Section 425.05. Definitions.  
See chapter 12 for definitions. 

Section 425.10. Priority Schedule for Space Permits.  
Space permits for the St. Alban’s Bay municipal docks, and Meadville sailboat slips, and Meadville canoe racks are 
granted based on the following priority schedule: 

1. First Priority: Off-shore Greenwood residents immediate past watercraft space permit holders. 
2.  Second Priority: Off-shore Greenwood residents on the waiting list. 
3.  Third Priority: Lakeshore Greenwood residents immediate past watercraft space permit holders. 
4. Fourth Priority: Lakeshore Greenwood residents on the waiting list. 
5. Fifth Priority: Non-residents.” 

Section 425.15. Process.   
The following outlines the process for issuance of watercraft space permits: and slips at the municipal docks on St. 
Alban’s Bay and the Meadville sailboat slips. 

(a)  Get on the waiting list: Residents and non-residents must complete a "waiting list" application and deliver by mail or in 
person to the city clerk who will put up to 2 names per household per position on the appropriate waiting list in the 
order they are received. Separate lists will be maintained for the St. Alban’s Bay docks, and Meadville sailboat slips, 
and Meadville canoe rack locations for the 5 priority categories listed in section 425.10 (a total of 10 lists). An address 
is allowed to appear only once per waiting list. Once a household is assigned a watercraft space, the address may not 
appear on the same waiting list. Once you are assigned dock space, your address may not appear on the same 
waiting list. For example, if you are assigned a space at the St. Alban's Bay Docks, your address may not appear on 
the St. Alban's Bay Docks waiting list. However, your address may be on the waiting list for the St. Alban's Bay Docks 
if you are assigned a space at the Meadville Sailboat Slips, and vice versa.  Waiting list applications for the Meadville 
canoe rack spaces will be accepted beginning _________, 2012 at 8 a.m. 

 (b)  Past permittees must submit an application by March 15: The city clerk will mail "slip renewal" applications to past 
permittees before February 1 each year. The applicant shall cause the application form, all required information, and 
the required non-refundable fee to be delivered to the city clerk no later than March 15. Failure to meet the March 15 
deadline shall cause immediate past permitees to lose their priority and their name will go to the bottom of the 
appropriate waiting list. 

(c)  Slips are assigned to past permittees first: Past permittees will be assigned the same slip as the previous year. 
(d)  Open spaces assigned to past permittees who request relocation: After March 15 open spaces will be assigned to 

past permittees who request relocation on their application. Open spaces will be assigned based on seniority. 
Seniority is determined by the year the permittee was assigned a space.  

(e)  Open spaces assigned to waiting list: The city clerk will offer remaining open spaces to the person(s) at the top of the 
waiting list in writing by mailing an application for “first time slip assignment.” New permittees must complete the 
application requirements in section 425.25 within 10 days of the date on the notification letter. by the deadline on the  
application (10 days from the date of mailing). Failure to meet the 10-day deadline shall be treated the same as if the 
space was declined. If the person(s) at the top position on the waiting list declines to take a watercraft space, their 
name(s) shall go to the bottom of the waiting list, and the offer will to go to the next person(s) on the list. If more than 
one space opens up in a given year, a letter (A, B, C, etc.) is added to the year for seniority purposes. The letter 
corresponds to the order the new permittee’s name appeared on the waiting list. 

 (f) Adding or deleting names: A second name may be added or changed, as long as the second person resides at the 
same household. If either person moves from the city, their name shall be removed from the list. In the case of one 
person moving to another household in the city, the person staying at the original household shall keep the priority 
position on the list and the other person will go to the bottom of the appropriate waiting list. In the case of death, the 
priority position can only go to a second person if their name was on the list with the deceased. In other words, a child 
cannot move back into the home and take over the priority rights. No one under the age of 18 is allowed to be on a 
dock list or waiting list. All requests for name changes must be in writing and establish residency by including a 
photocopy of a Minnesota driver's license or Minnesota state identification card. 



Section 425.20 Additional Provisions for the Meadville Sailboat Slips. 
The city holds interest in various public right-of-way and other properties that abut public waters of Lake Minnetonka 
(apart from the St. Alban’s Bay municipal dock site). The subdivisions set forth below state special conditions and 
provisions related to the identified lake access lots. 
Subd. 2. Terms and Conditions. The use of that certain public access lying westerly of Meadville Street located between 
property tax ID parcels 261172332-0004 and 261172332-0011 (commonly called the Meadville sailboat slips) is subject to 
the following terms and conditions:  

(a) The city may offer watercraft permits for up to 2 watercraft.  
(b) Watercraft spaces shall be for sailboats only.  
(c) The city shall not be responsible for providing any docking facilities at this site.  
(d) Boatlifts supplied by the permittee may be used. The city may refuse permits for boatlifts because of size 

considerations. Any watercraft space permittee that desires to place a boatlift at this assigned site shall request 
preapproval from the city clerk.  

Subd. 3. Meadville sailboat permits are not transferrable to the St. Alban’s Bay municipal docks. Holders of a Meadville 
sailboat permit shall be entitled to renewal, but shall not obtain rights of priority to a permit at the St. Alban’s municipal 
dock site on St. Alban’s Bay. Nothing herein shall prevent the holder of a Meadville sailboat permit from being on the 
waiting list for a permit at the municipal dock site on St. Alban’s Bay. In the event a Meadville sailboat permit holder is 
granted a permit for the municipal dock site on St. Alban’s Bay, such person shall not also be entitled keep their Meadville 
sailboat permit. 

Section 425.25. Application Requirements.  
An applicant for a watercraft space permit must: 

(a)  Complete the application form and pay the requisite non-refundable fee (set forth in chapter 5). 
(b)  Establish residency by submitting a photocopy of a Minnesota driver’s license or Minnesota state identification card to 

the city clerk. If 2 names are on the application, both must prove residency and live at the same residence. 
(c)  Submit a photocopy of the watercraft title and registration card indicating that at least one of the applicants is the 

owner of the watercraft. Maximum of 2 names (both must reside at the same residence) may appear on the title and 
registration card. If a watercraft does not have a title or registration card, this requirement may be waived and 
alternate satisfactory proof of ownership will need to be presented. 

(d)  Provide a complete description of the watercraft including make, model, length (St. Alban’s Bay dock maximum 23 ft.), 
beam (St. Alban’s Bay dock maximum of 8.5 ft.), and Minnesota Department of Natural Resources (DNR) registration 
number. Note: Immediate past St. Alban’s Bay dock watercraft space permit holders whose watercraft identified on 
their 1997 watercraft space permit violates the size requirements of this paragraph shall not be denied renewal of the 
permit for non-conformance of the same watercraft. If a watercraft does not have a DNR registration number, this 
requirement may be waived and alternate satisfactory proof of ownership will need to be presented. 

(e)  Provide proof of current watercraft liability insurance in the name of at least one of the applicants. All watercraft space 
permit holders must sign an acknowledgement that they assume risks associated with use of a city-provided 
watercraft space. 

 (f) If an applicant does not have a boat, they may request a 30-day extension from the application deadline in writing to 
provide items c, d, e above. Failure to secure a boat within 30 days shall result in loss of the fee, space assignment, 
and the applicant's name shall go to the bottom of the appropriate waiting list. 

 
Section 425.26. Additional Provisions for Canoe Rack Spaces. 
 

(a) Canoe rack permit holders may place one canoe, or one kayak, or up to two paddleboards within their designated 
space provided that doing so does not impede the usage of adjacent spaces. 

(b) Private locks may be used to secure watercraft, but must be removed by October 15. 
 
Section 425.30. Use of Watercraft Space and General Regulations. 
Subd. 1. Rights Not Assignable. A watercraft space permit is not assignable. No watercraft space permit holder may sell, 
assign, lease, sublet, or otherwise transfer any rights in the waiting list, or under a watercraft space permit, nor allow any 
watercraft other than that designated on the watercraft space permit holder’s application to be moored or kept within the 
designated watercraft space.  

Subd. 2. Watercraft Use. No person may keep a watercraft within a watercraft space except with a valid watercraft space 
permit first issued pursuant to this ordinance. Watercraft space permit holders who desire to change the watercraft 
authorized to use a watercraft space shall submit all of the information required to the city clerk in advance for review and 
confirmation of compliance. No watercraft shall be moored in a watercraft space until the city clerk approves such 
watercraft as the identified watercraft in the owner’s application. In the event a watercraft is sold during mid-boating 
season, the successor in interest shall have no right to use the watercraft space. 



Subd. 3. Non-Use of Watercraft Space. The permittee’s watercraft shall occupy the watercraft space on or before June 15 
of the boating season. In the event a pemittee fails to place the authorized watercraft within the assigned watercraft space 
by midnight on June 15, the permittee shall lose their watercraft space for the current and future seasons, and the space 
shall be offered to the next person on the waiting list (there will be no refund of the fee paid). If the permittee fails to 
employ the assigned watercraft space for a term of 60 days or greater during the boating season, the city shall not renew 
the watercraft space permit for future boating seasons. The determination by the city, not to renew a watercraft space 
permit for non-use shall be final.  

Subd. 4. Permittee Assumption of Liability and Indemnification. The acceptance of a watercraft space permit by the 
permittee shall constitute the acknowledgment and agreement by the applicant/permittee that they shall be responsible for 
any and all damages caused by the permittee, their guests and invitees, or the watercraft itself, to the watercraft space, 
the dock in general, any other watercraft, persons or property which may arise as a result of storm, vandalism, accident, 
negligence, intentional act, or act of God. By accepting a watercraft space permit, the permittee agrees to hold the city 
harmless against any and all claims, directly or indirectly, connected with their watercraft. 

“Subd. 5. Fees. Fees paid in conjunction with the issuance of a permit are non-refundable. Watercraft space permit fees 
shall be established, from time to time by the city council and set forth in chapter 5 of this code. Fees may be prorated for 
permits issued mid-season.” 

Subd. 6. Cooperation. Permit holders shall cooperate with city officials in all inquiries, verifications, directions or orders 
that the city makes or issues to permit holders or applicants. Failure to cooperate with inquiries, verifications, directions, or 
orders made or issued by the city shall be cause to bar a watercraft space permit holder, permittee, or applicant from 
applying for or obtaining a watercraft space permit for up to 3 boating seasons. 

Subd. 7. Final Decisions. All determinations by the city clerk relating to prioritization of the waiting lists, the issuance of 
permits, and slip space assignments shall be final. 

Subd. 8. Separate Permit Applications; Limit on Permits. A separate permit application is required for each watercraft 
space requested. No more than 1 watercraft space permit shall may be issued per individual per boating season and no 
more than 1 watercraft space shall may be issued per single-family residence / applicant. 

Subd. 9. Common/Collective Ownership or Commercial Use. Watercraft owned by partnerships, corporations, 
associations, or used or licensed for commercial purposes shall not be eligible to receive a watercraft space permit. 
Subd. 10. Additional Watercraft Permit Regulations. The city may adopt by resolution watercraft, and watercraft space 
permit regulations regarding use of municipal docks, watercraft spaces, proper mooring, hours of use, conduct of persons 
on or about municipally owned, operated, or controlled watercraft spaces or other related topics. A violation of said 
regulations shall be a petty misdemeanor. Failure to abide by regulations shall be cause for the city to revoke or elect not 
to renew a permittee’s watercraft space permit for the coming boating season and the loss of all waiting list priority. 

Subd. 11. Quiet Enjoyment. No person, permittee, or watercraft operator shall disturb the quiet enjoyment of municipal 
docks watercraft spaces by other persons, permittees, or the general public in or about any watercraft space, nor 
otherwise obstruct the use of watercraft spaces nor allow a watercraft owned, operated, or under their control, to go 
unattended or improperly tied or secured. A violation of this paragraph shall be a misdemeanor. 
Subd. 12. Acknowledgment of City Code. As a pre-condition to the issuance of any watercraft space permit by the city 
clerk, the permittee shall be given a copy of code section 425 et. seq. and shall sign an acknowledgment that they have 
received the copy and understand that they are subject to the provisions thereof.  

Subd. 13. Watercraft Parking and Beaching. Only permittees are allowed to park watercraft at municipal docks or shore 
spaces, slips, or racks. No watercraft is allowed to beach or pull up on municipal shoreline.  
 
Section 425.35. Boating Season, Expiration of Permit and Removal of Watercraft.   
 
The boating season is May 15 to October 15. All watercraft space permits shall expire at the end of the boating season. 
Watercraft shall be removed from watercraft space permits on or before the end of the boating season. Subsequent to the 
end of the boating season, the city may impound all watercraft remaining in watercraft spaces. All impoundment and 
storage cost incurred by the city shall be payable by the permittee and may be certified to taxes if unpaid. Failure to pay 
impoundment and storage costs shall be cause for the city to revoke or elect not to renew a permittee’s watercraft space 
permit for the coming boating season and the loss of waiting list priority.  

Section 425.40. Parking.  
It shall be unlawful to park any trailer or vehicle used in the transportation of boats upon any public parking space or 
adjacent to any public ground within the city, without obtaining written permission of the city council. Any vehicle used for 
the transportation of boats or any boat dock, trailer or fish house which shall be parked, placed, kept, or abandoned on, or 
which shall obstruct any public street, highway, or other public property, may be seized and impounded by any authorized 
officer or employee of the city. 



Section 425.45. Launching.  
No person shall launch or remove from the waters of Lake Minnetonka any watercraft requiring or utilizing a trailer of 
similar conveyance for the transportation when such launching or removal requires crossing over or through property 
owned by the city, except as specifically authorized by the city, and then upon such fees as may be established by the city 
council from time to time and set forth in chapter 5 of this code book. 

Section 425.50. Swimming, Fishing.  
No person shall swim or water ski from the municipal docks. Fishing is permitted, provided proper precautions are taken 
so as not to interfere with the normal operation of watercraft, or otherwise damage watercraft moored or docked at the 
municipal docks.  

Section 425.55. Littering.  
No person shall deposit, throw, or leave any refuse, cans, bottles, paper, or other discarded material of whatsoever kind 
or nature on or near the municipal docks or the public lands from which the municipal docks emanate nor throw said 
materials into the waters of Lake Minnetonka. 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 7C 

Agenda Date: 07-05-12 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Consider: Ordinance 211, Amending Code Sections 520.15 and 525.15, Regarding Deadlines for 
Delinquent Sewer and Stormwater Payments 
 
Summary: The city ordinance currently requires all delinquent sewer and stormwater payments be made no later than 
September 30 or they will be certified and assessed to the property owner’s upcoming property taxes. The September 30 
date is inconsistent with the September 15 deadline for the payment of delinquent recycling fees. The proposal to amend 
to ordinance to reflect the September 15 date for all utility bills allows the billing clerk time to prepare the required 
paperwork for approval at the October council meeting, so everything can be filed with the county in October. 

Council Action:  Suggested motion … 
 

1. I move the council adopts ordinance 211 amending sections 520.15 and 525.15, regarding the deadlines for 
delinquent sewer and stormwater payments. 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 211 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA AMENDING  
GREENWOOD ORDINANCE CODE SECTIONS 520.15 AND 525.15,  

REGARDING DEADLINES FOR DELIQUENT SEWER AND STORMWATER PAYMENTS  
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA DOES ORDAIN: 
 

SECTION 1. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 520.15 is amended to read as follows:  
 
“All charges for sewer shall be due within 30 days of mailing of the statement of charges, and shall be delinquent 
thereafter. It shall be the duty of the sanitary sewer utility to endeavor to promptly collect delinquent accounts, and in all 
cases where satisfactory arrangements for payment have not then been made, instructions may be given to discontinue 
service by shutting off the water at the stop box, if city water is in use. Any sanitary sewer utility fees 60 or more days past 
due as of September 15, of any year, may be certified to the county auditor for collection with real estate taxes of the real 
property in the following year pursuant to Minnesota statutes section 444.075, subdivision 3. In addition, the city also may 
assess and collect unpaid fees and delinquency charges related thereto by ordinance memorialized in chapter 5 of this 
code book. Such action may be optional or subsequent to taking legal action to collect delinquent accounts.” 
 
SECTION 2. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 525.15 is amended to read as follows: 
 
“All charges for stormwater management shall be due within 30 days of mailing of the statement of charges, and shall be 
delinquent thereafter. It shall be the duty of the stormwater management utility to endeavor to promptly collect delinquent 
accounts. Any stormwater management utility fees 60 or more days past due as of September 15, of any year, may be 
certified to the county auditor for collection with real estate taxes of the real property in the following year pursuant to 
Minnesota statutes section 444.075, subdivision 3. In addition, the city also may assess and collect unpaid fees and 
delinquency charges related thereto by ordinance memorialized in chapter 5 of this code book. Such action may be 
optional or subsequent to taking legal action to collect delinquent accounts.” 
 
SECTION 3. 
Effective Date. This ordinance shall be effective upon publication according to law. 
 
Enacted by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota this 5th day of July, 2012. 
 
There were __ AYES and __ NAYS as follows: 
 
Greenwood City Council YEAS NAYS ABSTAIN ABSENT 
     

Mayor Debra Kind     
Councilman Tom Fletcher     
Councilman H. Kelsey Page     
Councilman Bob Quam     
Councilman William (Biff) Rose     
     

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________  
Debra J. Kind, Mayor  
 
 
Attest: __________________________________ 
Gus E. Karpas, City Clerk 
 
First reading: July 5, 2012 
Second reading: _____, 2012 
Publication: _____, 2012 
 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 7D 

Agenda Date: 07-05-12 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Consider: Ordinance Regarding Intoxicating Liquor Prohibitions 
 

Summary: When a Greenwood business was told that the city does not issue special event liquor licenses the question 
was asked whether liquor could be provided by attendees at their customer appreciation party. The city attorney advised 
that nuisances section 900.10 (H) of the city code prohibits such activity. The city attorney also advised that the city 
council should consider a new section 825 ordinance for the liquor chapter 8 of the city code that clearly states: 
 

Section 825. Intoxicating Liquor Prohibitions.  
No premise, other than a private residence or licensed liquor establishment, may offer, give, provide or allow any 
person to possess or consume alcohol in or about any premise or commercial business nor allow liquor to be 
consumed by established customers or potential customers thereof, nor allow consumption of alcohol in 
conjunction with any commercial business, commercial transaction, or customer appreciation event, including 
inviting customers to bring their own alcoholic beverages to the site.    

 
 

Council Action: Required. Suggested motions … 

1. I move the council directs staff to draft an ordinance creating code section 825 Intoxicating Liquor Prohibitions 
and place on the ______, 2012 agenda for a first reading. 

2. I move the council directs staff to draft an ordinance creating code section ______, based on the council 
discussion, and place on the ______, 2012 agenda for a first reading. 

3. Do nothing. 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 7E 

Agenda Date: 07-05-12 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: Consider: Possibility of Revising Code Section 1215 (to allow the council to waive the second 
reading of an ordinance) 
 

Summary: There are times when ordinances are routine or when the council may wish to speed up the implementation of 
an ordinance (such as the new canoe rack ordinance). Current Greenwood code (attached) requires two readings of 
ordinances. Since ordinances must be published in the designated paper before they go into effect, an additional week is 
needed to allow time for publication. Also, often an ordinance concept is discussed by the council prior to ordering the 
drafting of the actual ordinance. Since the council only meets once a month, this entire process can take awhile. A slow, 
deliberate process can be a good thing. However, there are cases when it might be nice for the council to have the option 
to speed up the process. If the council desires to have the option to waive the second reading of an ordinance, the city 
attorney advises that the city code would need to be revised. 
 
A sampling of neighboring cities (attached) shows that there is discretion regarding the implementation of ordinances:  
 

1. Deephaven code states, “The second reading may be waived by a majority vote of the council.” 
2. Minnetonka code states, “Except for an emergency ordinance, an ordinance cannot be adopted at the meeting 

when it is introduced, and at least seven days must elapse between introduction and adoption.” Emergency 
ordinances and ordinances that are not subject to initiative and referendum are effective immediately upon 
passage. 

3. Shorewood code states, “All ordinances passed by the legislative body requiring publication shall take effect from 
and after the due publication thereof, unless otherwise expressly provided.” There is no mention in the 
Shorewood code about “readings.” 

 
 

Council Action: None required. Suggested motions … 

1. I move the council directs staff to draft an ordinance amending code section 1215.06 to add a sentence that reads, 
“The second reading may be waived by a majority vote of the council,” and place on the ______, 2012 agenda for 
a first reading. 

2. I move the council directs staff to draft an ordinance based on the council discussion, and place on the ______, 
2012 agenda for a first reading. 

3. Do nothing. 
 



06-26-12 

 

GREENWOOD  
 
1215.05. Ordinance Enactment.  
Ordinances must be enacted in accordance with state law, city charter and this code. Ordinances will be 
integrated into this code in accordance with this chapter. 
 
Section 1215.06. Two Readings of Ordinances. 
There shall be 2 readings of all ordinances prior to adoption. The second reading shall be within 3 months of the 
first. There may be changes between the first and second readings. 
 
Section 1215.07. Ordinance Voting. 
Every ordinance shall be enacted by a majority vote of all members of the council except where a larger number 
is required by law.  
 
1215.10. Form.  
An ordinance amending this code must specify the number of the provision to be amended. Only the text of a 
separately identified provision need be included for an amendment; the larger section of which it is a part may be 
omitted.  
 

DEEPHAVEN  
 
200.10 Ordinances, Resolutions, and Petitions. 

Subd. 1. Readings. Every ordinance will be presented in writing, except in emergency situations. Every ordinance 
will receive two readings before the Council prior to final adoption. The second reading may be waived by a 
majority vote of the Council. 

Subd. 2. Signing and Proof of Publication. Every ordinance and resolution passed by the Council will be signed by 
the Mayor, attested by the Clerk, numbered, recorded and filed in an ordinance or resolution book. Proof of 
publication of every ordinance will be attached to and filed with the ordinance. No resolution will be published 
unless the laws of the State require it to be published or unless it is directed to be published by the Council. 

Subd. 3. Repeals and Amendments. Every ordinance or resolution repealing or amending all or a part of a 
previous ordinance or resolution will give the number of the ordinance, resolution or Code Section to be repealed 
or amended. 

Subd. 4. Petitions. Every petition or other communication addressed to the Council will be in writing and will be 
read in full upon presentation to the Council unless the Council dispenses with the reading. Each petition or other 
communication will be recorded in the minutes by title. 

 
MINNETONKA  
Section 3.06.  Adoption of Ordinances. 

Subd. 1. Unless this charter or state law provides otherwise, legislation must be enacted by ordinance, and an 
ordinance must be approved by a majority of all council members. 

Subd. 2. An ordinance must be presented in writing. The enacting clause of an ordinance is: "The City of 
Minnetonka ordains:". Except for an emergency ordinance, an ordinance cannot be adopted at the meeting when 
it is introduced, and at least seven days must elapse between introduction and adoption. 



Subd. 3. An ordinance passed by the council must be signed by the mayor or acting mayor and attested to by the 
city clerk. An ordinance must be published at least once in the official means of publication. The city council may 
by the affirmative votes of at least five members approve publication of only the title and a summary of an 
ordinance, in the same manner as statutory cities. 

Subd. 4. An emergency ordinance and an ordinance that is not subject to initiative and referendum under Section 
5.01 are effective immediately upon passage or at a later date stated in it. Other ordinances adopted by the 
council are effective 30 days after publication or at a later date stated in them. An ordinance adopted by the 
voters is effective immediately upon adoption, or at a later time stated in it. 

Section 3.07.  Emergency Ordinances. 

An emergency ordinance is an ordinance necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, 
safety or welfare. It must be adopted by the affirmative votes of at least five council members and contain a 
preamble that defines and declares the emergency. The city may not prosecute a violation of an emergency 
ordinance until 24 hours after the ordinance was either (a) filed with the city clerk and posted in three conspicuous 
places in the city or (b) published at least once in the official means of publication, unless the person charged had 
actual notice of the ordinance adoption before the alleged violation. An emergency ordinance is automatically 
repealed on the 61st day after adoption, but the ordinance may be re-enacted if the emergency still exists. 

 

SHOREWOOD 
101.10  EFFECTIVE DATE OF ORDINANCES. 

    All ordinances passed by the legislative body requiring publication shall take effect from and after the due 
publication thereof, unless otherwise expressly provided. 

101.11  REPEAL OR MODIFICATION OF ORDINANCE. 

Subd. 1.     Whenever any ordinance or part of an ordinance shall be repealed or modified by a subsequent 
ordinance, the ordinance or part of an ordinance thus repealed or modified shall continue in force until the 
publication of the ordinance repealing or modifying it when publication is required to give effect to it, unless 
otherwise expressly provided. 

Subd. 2.     No suit, proceedings, right, fine, forfeiture, or penalty instituted, created, given, secured, or accrued 
under any ordinance previous to its repeal shall in any way be affected, released, or discharged, but may be 
prosecuted, enjoyed, and recovered as fully as if the ordinance had continued in force unless it is otherwise 
expressly provided. 

Subd. 3.     When any ordinance repealing a former ordinance, clause, or provision shall be itself repealed, the 
repeal shall not be construed to revive the former ordinance, clause, or provision, unless it is expressly provided. 

 

 
 
	  



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 9A-E 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Council Reports 
 
Summary: This is an opportunity for each council member to present updates and get input regarding various council 
assignments and projects. Related documents may be attached to this cover sheet. 
 
Council Action: None required.  

 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: FYI 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: FYI Items in Council Packet 
  
Summary: The attached items are included in the council packet for your information (FYI) only. FYI items typically 
include planning commission minutes, ViBES (Violations Bureau Electronic System) report of traffic citations processed by 
Hennepin County District Court, monthly report of activity on the Greenwood website, and other items of interest to the 
council. 
  
Council Action: No council action is needed for FYI items. 











 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
June 15, 2012 
 
 
 
LMCD NEWS- FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE  
Contact: Greg Nybeck, Executive Director  
(952) 745-0789 or gnybeck@lmcd.org  
 
RE:  Termination of “Low Water” Declaration on Lake Minnetonka  
 
When the Lake levels fall below 928.0 feet, the Lake Minnetonka Conservation District (LMCD) Code states that the 
Board of Directors may approve a resolution declaring “Low Water.”  This declaration was adopted by the LMCD 
Board on April 11th; providing for permitted temporary dock length extensions.    
 
On June 13th, the Lake level was 929.09 feet (over one foot higher than the trigger point of 928.0 feet).  Since the 
Lake level has risen to typical historical measurements, the “Low Water” declaration on Lake Minnetonka has been 
terminated, effective immediately.   Legally permitted temporary dock length extensions, in accordance with the 
LMCD Code, are allowed to remain in place for the remainder of the 2012 boating season.  All dock extensions 
must be removed prior to November 15th.  
 
For further information, contact LMCD Executive Director Greg Nybeck at (952) 745-0789 or gnybeck@lmcd.org.   

mailto:gnybeck@lmcd.org


Variance with Variance with 
Month 2011 2012 Prior Month Prior Year
January 0 2,034 -43 2,034
February 0 2,911 877 2,911
March 0 2,516 -395 2,516
April 0 2,746 230 2,746
May 0 2,682 -64 2,682
June 0 2,509 -173 2,509
July 0 0 -2,509 0
August 0 0 0 0
September 0 0 0 0
October 0 0 0 0
November 0 0 0 0
December 2,077 0 0 -2,077

0 

500 

1,000 

1,500 

2,000 

2,500 

3,000 

3,500 

City	  of	  Greenwood	  
Website Total Hits 

2011 

2012 



6/15/12 8:34 AMwww.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com Admin

Page 1 of 3http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC…tistics&BeginDate=5%2F15%2F2012&EndDate=6%2F15%2F2012&report=0

Content Tools Data Center Site Management Security

Welcome, Greenwood | Hide QuickTips | Help | Logout

Live Site

Get Report

Site Statistics
Use this reporting tool to see your site statistics for your public site for this month or the
previous month. Statistics for the Administration (or "admin") side of your site are not
included in this report. Additionally, visits you make to your own site while administering it
are not included in these statistics. All data collected before the previous month has been
purged from our system and is not available for use; therefore, we recommend printing
this report each month for your records.

The first report - Page Views by Section - shows total page views for each section. The
second report - Unique Visitors by Section - shows the total page views for each section
without the return visitors (showing only views from unique IP addresses). For example, if
you browse to a page today, and then browse to that same page tomorrow, your viewing
of that page would only be counted once in the unique (second) report. 

Each report lists sections in page view order (highest number of page views first) and only
lists sections that have had traffic within the reporting period. It does not list those
sections without traffic.

Begin Date 5/15/2012

End Date 6/15/2012

Report Name Page Views (Default)

Page Views by Section

Section Page Views Percent of Total
Default Home Page 1049 41.81%

Agendas, Packets & Minutes 202 8.05%

City Departments 102 4.07%

Welcome to Greenwood 80 3.19%

Mayor & City Council 78 3.11%

Docks 66 2.63%

Planning Commission 65 2.59%

Code Book 62 2.47%

Comprehensive Plan & Maps 57 2.27%

Assessments & Taxes 52 2.07%

Forms & Permits 50 1.99%

Crime Alert! 48 1.91%

RFPs & Bids 45 1.79%

Search Results 39 1.55%

Budget & Finances 37 1.47%

What's New? 36 1.43%

Lake Minnetonka 35 1.39%

Photo Gallery 35 1.39%

Events 34 1.36%

Garbage & Recycling 33 1.32%

Meetings 31 1.24%

Xcel Project 26 1.04%

Milfoil Project 24 0.96%

Swiffers NOT Flushable 24 0.96%

Spring Clean-Up Day 22 0.88%

The reports offered in
your Site Statistics tool
only track activity on
the public side of your
site.

In each report, a section
named "Default" and a
section named "Home"
may appear.

A page view gets
attributed to "Default"
when a visitor to your
site types your URL into
his or her Web browser. 
In most cases, the
"Default" section is your
Home Page.

A page view gets
attributed to "Home"
each time a visitor clicks
the "Home" button on
your Web site.

In the Page View
(Default) report, only
sections with Web traffic
are reported and they
are listed in page view
order.

In the Page View by
Section report, sections
are listed in the order
they appear in the
navigation menu and
are reported regardless
of their traffic level.

In the Referrers report,
it is important to
remember that your
own site acts like a
referrer.  So, don't be
surprised if you see your
own Web address(es)
listed -- this tracks the
number of times people
went from one part of
your site to another.

Quick Tips

http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=ContentTools
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=DataCenter
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteManagement
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=Security
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&BeginDate=5%2F15%2F2012&EndDate=6%2F15%2F2012&report=0
http://help.avenet.net/
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=Login&action=logout
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B8F3A3A9D-5458-4CB6-BB1F-AC94BB9B09DF%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B030CFE4C-5016-4145-982B-BC20CF1CE9B0%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE8F16C03-E9EC-40F7-A931-F5A45B19576E%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BFF4DABAE-9793-4C75-9595-89E365126209%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B08153459-A93B-48DE-A049-7A47AB3B7C7D%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B05D0F828-E762-44A3-BC47-B094E012C13F%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B41336A06-DF03-426F-BAC8-B478696E7ABE%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BEC7D78ED-9B90-469C-87DA-F45E8296634D%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B937BBE21-87E7-4815-95EF-9E4DBD883B56%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC446C0E6-C85B-4D6B-9F2A-45390CDE8A69%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B7D523E15-7556-4375-B814-673BCF885086%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BB2F86E65-BD20-40B7-8A26-1B4DC4FF837A%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B6428E068-96A6-40C7-9082-13636C643E44%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC4ED0441-B19F-4C17-8FAB-B27178681446%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B09C69529-46DA-45C3-9D5A-F642FC7ACBC9%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE04A1A51-136D-44C1-BD41-8FC4E61A774B%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5AF5BE04-E22D-498B-8DF0-E4E97E512089%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B81865F8A-E58F-4546-80DA-616E969899AF%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BF7C1F295-9D1A-47F1-B520-906AEA4C1EF7%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B12A653D6-4378-49A7-A3FC-97A7073E27C9%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BEEFCEF1D-6773-4295-986F-BA6BDB3215AC%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B29DBC80E-711D-420C-8E7E-88949C90F651%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BA06C3108-5700-4A55-A324-1E2C07C9DC78%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC0861CA3-9AD6-44B8-83A0-3830DDD789F7%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&BeginDate=5%2F15%2F2012&EndDate=6%2F15%2F2012&report=0#


6/15/12 8:34 AMwww.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com Admin

Page 2 of 3http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC…tistics&BeginDate=5%2F15%2F2012&EndDate=6%2F15%2F2012&report=0

Generate Download File (.csv) for the current report: Generate and Download

Email List 20 0.8%

Well Water 19 0.76%

Old Log Community Events 19 0.76%

Meetings on TV 18 0.72%

Southshore Center 17 0.68%

Links 16 0.64%

Health & Safety 15 0.6%

Elections 14 0.56%

Animal Services 12 0.48%

Community Surveys 11 0.44%

Emergency Preparedness 11 0.44%

Unsubscribe 5 0.2%

TOTAL 2509 100%

Unique IPs by Section

Section Unique IPs Percent of Total IPs
Default Home Page 456 32.16%

Agendas, Packets & Minutes 85 5.99%

City Departments 77 5.43%

Welcome to Greenwood 60 4.23%

Mayor & City Council 53 3.74%

Docks 44 3.1%

Planning Commission 43 3.03%

Crime Alert! 40 2.82%

Forms & Permits 36 2.54%

Assessments & Taxes 33 2.33%

Comprehensive Plan & Maps 30 2.12%

Code Book 29 2.05%

Photo Gallery 28 1.97%

Lake Minnetonka 28 1.97%

Events 26 1.83%

What's New? 25 1.76%

Meetings 24 1.69%

Garbage & Recycling 23 1.62%

RFPs & Bids 21 1.48%

Xcel Project 20 1.41%

Swiffers NOT Flushable 19 1.34%

Spring Clean-Up Day 18 1.27%

Search Results 17 1.2%

Milfoil Project 17 1.2%

Well Water 17 1.2%

Budget & Finances 17 1.2%

Old Log Community Events 16 1.13%

Email List 15 1.06%

Meetings on TV 14 0.99%

Southshore Center 14 0.99%

Links 13 0.92%

Elections 13 0.92%

Health & Safety 12 0.85%

Community Surveys 11 0.78%

Emergency Preparedness 10 0.71%

Animal Services 9 0.63%

Unsubscribe 5 0.35%

TOTAL 1418 100%

http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B45BFFFAD-A74F-4A5C-881D-1DDEB689390B%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B8A0FD9DB-EF26-4B80-AB4F-C79C6F905931%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BB4737361-6BA3-43DC-893C-D8AE06A935AA%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BF458B3B5-588F-49DF-ACE1-F64600152C67%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE4E6E072-F7DA-4CB1-A638-8915989F8078%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B86561FCE-AB6E-4655-9D85-28D89FDF4185%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B7F9AEDE7-125C-44E5-9A1F-3C7A93195E8B%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5FD2DB20-C5E6-4466-BB1F-5137A3A383FA%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE2CCCFEF-5547-4416-81A6-0ACBB34571E6%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5EFC3CE3-C0E6-4AFE-BC8B-FD662DC0B6DE%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B2EE6F67F-9BE4-4076-8A33-F589B91B72C4%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1
http://www.greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BA8FAE50E-D745-414D-8707-F9F9AAD99E95%7D&BeginDate=5/15/2012&EndDate=6/15/2012&report=1


GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, June 20, 2012 

7:00 P.M. 

 1 

  
1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Chairman Lucking called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Members Present: Chairman Lucking and Commission members Bill Cook, David 

Paeper, Douglas Reeder (5:09) and Alternate members Lisa 
Christian and Kristi Conrad 

 
Absent: Commissioner John Beal 
 
Others Present: City Attorney Mark Kelly, Council Liaison Tom Fletcher and 

Zoning Administrator Gus Karpas. 
 
Due to the absence of Commissioner Beal, Alternate Conrad will be a voting member of 
the Commission at tonight’s meeting. 
 
2. OATH OF OFFICE 
 
City Attorney Mark Kelly administered the Oath of Office to incoming Commissioner Lisa 
Christian. 

 
3. APPROVE AGENDA 
 
Commissioner Cook moved to accept the agenda for tonight’s meeting.  Commissioner 
Paeper seconded the motion. Motion carried 5-0. 
 
4. MINUTES OF May 16, 2012. 
 
Commissioner Cook moved to approve the minutes of May 16, 2012 as amended.  
Commissioner Paeper seconded the motion.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
LIAISON REPORT 
 
Council Liaison Fletcher informed the Commission on a number of issues including the 
Council’s appointment of Lisa Christian to the Planning Commission, its discussion of 
and adoption of two resolutions regarding the proposed Xcel Energy project, the 
adoption of the first reading of a sump pump ordinance, the approval of the Carlson 
variance request with the condition the impervious surface not increase what was 
approved by the Planning Commission, the approval of the Carlson conditional use 
permit, the approval for the construction and placement of a canoe rack at the Meadville 
fire lane and the reappointment of Vintage Waste as the city’s recycler for the next three 
years. 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
Matt and Angela Lindberg, 5160 Greenwood Circle, variance request to alter the 
grade greater than one vertical foot in conjunction with a rear yard landscaping project.  
The maximum extent of the grade alteration would be a difference of the grade by 
thirteen vertical feet. 
  



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, June 20, 2012 

7:00 P.M. 

 2 

Section 1140:19 of the Zoning Ordinance requires the issuance of a variance for any 
increase in grade greater than one vertical foot within any one hundred square foot of 
area on the lot. 
 
Chairman Lucking summarized the request and opened the public hearing. 
 
David Roth and Jason Robinson from Buildscape Design were present to answer any 
questions. Mr. Robinson said the property currently has a small retaining wall at the rear 
of the house and the property slopes up from there to Highview Place.  The plan 
proposes to remove that wall and push the grade back and redirect the water that comes 
down the slope around the house. 
 
Chairman Lucking clarified that Highview Place drains into the subject property.  Mr. 
Roth said it does and that the portion that is not caught by the catch basin drains directly 
to the house.  Commissioner Paeper asked, under the proposal, where would the 
overflow be directed.  Mr. Roth said it would be directed around the left side of the wall 
into the rear yard.  He said this design would allow them to slope the grade away from 
the home. 
 
Commissioner Cook asked about the material to be used for the wall.  Mr. Robinson said 
it would be a field stone wall. 
 
Zoning Coordinator Karpas commented that the existing retaining wall is not shown on 
the plan so it’s hard to get perspective on how large an area is actually being leveled.  
Mr. Robinson said it was included on the plan submitted to the engineer and he 
assumed that would be passed on to the Commission.  He will submit a copy to the city. 
 
City Attorney Kelly asked if the existing drainage from Highview Place would be altered.  
Mr. Robinson said it would not and that the wall will have points in it that will let the water 
“seep” through instead of building up behind it.  Kelly asked what steps would be taken 
to prevent the wall from eroding.  Mr. Roth said they would place an eight ounce filter 
fabric behind the wall.  Mr. Robinson said everything would be directed to the catch 
basin and anything that goes through would be direct to the house. 
 
Commissioner Paeper asked if there would be a swale behind the wall.  Mr. Roth said 
there would be a swale.  Paeper asked about plantings.  Mr. Robinson said there would 
be some, but they haven’t been determined yet. 
 
Council Liaison Fletcher commented on the intent of the ordinance stating it was drafted 
in the context of massing, preventing someone from building up a lot and then placing a 
home on top of it.  Zoning Coordinator Karpas said drainage was also a concern. 
 
Commissioner Reeder commented that a thirteen foot change in grade is a big change.  
Chairman Lucking noted they were not raising the grade, rather cutting into the hill which 
would not impact the mass of the existing structure. 
 
Zoning Coordinator Karpas said the comments submitted by the City Engineer were 
rather vague and he will ask for more specific comments for the Council meeting.  City 
Attorney Kelly said he would like the engineer to weigh in on the drain tile profile.  
Commissioner Paeper would like him to look at the structure characteristics and 
hydrostatic pressure behind the wall. 



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, June 20, 2012 

7:00 P.M. 

 3 

 
City Attorney Kelly said a possible practical difficulty could be the depth of the yard.  He 
asked how much additional level yard this request would create.  Mr. Robinson said it 
would create an additional twenty-five to thirty feet.  He said there is also an issue with 
drainage between the existing wall and the house because the wall is too close to the 
house; there is not enough area to allow filtration of the water that settles there.  He said 
this would be solved by extending this area. 
 
Mr. Robinson asked if a catch basin could be put at the top of the wall to direct water to 
the other catch basin.  Commissioner Paeper said this may cause the regular catch 
basin to overload. 
 
Mr. Robinson said this proposal would also create a safe environment for the applicant’s 
children to play.  Mr. Roth added this request would not add any additional impervious 
surface. 
 
Council Liaison Fletcher asked if there were any concerns about the longevity of the 
proposed walls or issues they may create on adjacent properties.  Commissioner Cook 
said he was not sure of impacts on adjoining properties but the longevity of walls is 
based on their design and installation.  If designed and installed correctly they become 
almost permanent.  He said most walls are too steep and too tall and they start to fail.  
Fletcher said he agrees the engineer needs to be more specific in his review. 
 
Commissioner Paeper said he has no issue with the project but is struggling with 
defining a practical difficulty.  Zoning Coordinator Karpas discussed the criteria and 
suggested some ideas the Commission could use if they were inclined to recommend 
approval for the request. 
 
Commissioner Paeper said he has no issue with the intent or execution but believes the 
plan is more for the convenience of the homeowner and even though it improves the 
drainage, it’s more for convenience. 
 
Chairman Lucking said it could be argued the property is not well drained.  
Commissioner Cook said the plight could be the existing grade increases the velocity of 
the runoff.  Commissioner Conrad asked about plantings.  Cook said he could support 
the request if it was intended to correct a drainage issue.  Conrad agrees, but stated the 
application doesn’t state that as the main reason for the request in the application.  She 
feels the application should have stated the intent differently.  She would also like to see 
planting between the walls.  It was noted that plantings could actually damage the 
barriers and cause the walls to erode. 
 
City Attorney Kelly said if the Commission is inclined to recommend the Council approve 
the request, it should be based on the City Engineer providing a greater review of the 
overall design.  Commissioner Reeder agreed the engineer report is very important.   
 
Motion by Chairman Lucking to recommend the City Council approves the variance 
request to alter the grade greater than one vertical foot in conjunction with a rear yard 
landscaping project.  The maximum extent of the grade alteration would be a difference 
of the grade by thirteen vertical feet, as presented for 5160 Greenwood Circle.  A 
practical difficulty exists in the existing grade of the property which allows drainage from 
Highview Place to settle between the existing retaining wall and house rendering the 



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, June 20, 2012 

7:00 P.M. 

 4 

rear yard of the property unusable.  The motion is conditioned that the City Engineer 
provide a greater review of the proposal and provide a report to the Council which 
includes an analysis of the proposed drain tile profile, structural characteristics and a 
review of the hydrostatic pressure behind the wall.  The applicant must also include 
some type of safety fencing at the top of the wall in their design.  Paeper seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
6. ADJOURN 
 
Motion by Commissioner Cook to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Paeper seconded 
the motion.  The meeting was adjourned at 8:02 p.m. 
 
Respectively Submitted 
Gus Karpas - Zoning Administrator 


	07-05-12 Council Packet
	07-05-12 Agenda
	- MEMO Consent no date
	MAY CASH SUMMARY
	JULY PAYROLL CHECK REGISTER
	JUNE PAYABLES CHECK REGISTER
	JUNE PAYABLES FOR COUNCIL APPROVAL
	- MEMO Watermain
	06-13-12 Petition
	GRMEM.WaterMainPetition61512
	Res 07-12 Insufficiency of May Petition R1
	Res 15-12 Adequacy of 06-13-12 Petition
	RES 15-12 Insufficiency of 06-13-12 Petition
	- MEMO Findings of Fact
	Res 16-12 CarlsonKeith2.Approving DK
	- MEMO Findings of Fact
	Res 17-12 CarlsonKeith3.Approving DK
	- MEMO Prohibited Discharge into Sanitary Sewer
	Ord 210 Prohibited Discharge into Sanitary Sewer Redlined
	Ord 210 Prohibited Discharge into Sanitary Sewer Clean
	- MEMO Lindberg Variance
	Linberg Application
	Lindberg Engineered Plans
	Lindberg Site Plans
	Lindberg - 1st Engineer Review
	Lindberg - 2nd Engineer Review
	Memo - Ordinance 212 - Canoe Racks Amendments
	Ordinance 212 - Watercraft Regulation and Storage - 2012
	Section 425 Redlined
	- Memo - Ordinance 211 - Delinquent Sewer and Stormwater Fees R1
	Ordinance 211 - Deliquent Sewer and Stormwater Fees - 2012 R1
	- MEMO Intoxicating Liquor Prohibitions
	- MEMO Ordinance Procedures
	Ordinance Procedures of Neighboring Cities
	- MEMO Council Reports no date
	- MEMO FYI no date
	05-24-12 Mississippi River Comments
	06-11-12 GW Circle Letter
	06-15-12 Termination of Low Water Declaration Press Release (Final)
	06-15-12 Web Hits Summary.xls
	06-15-12 Web Report
	06-20-12 PC Minutes

	Res 16-12 CarlsonKeith2.Approving DK
	07-05-12 Council Packet
	07-05-12 Agenda
	- MEMO Consent no date
	MAY CASH SUMMARY
	JULY PAYROLL CHECK REGISTER
	JUNE PAYABLES CHECK REGISTER
	JUNE PAYABLES FOR COUNCIL APPROVAL
	- MEMO Watermain
	06-13-12 Petition
	GRMEM.WaterMainPetition61512
	Res 07-12 Insufficiency of May Petition R1
	Res 15-12 Adequacy of 06-13-12 Petition
	RES 15-12 Insufficiency of 06-13-12 Petition
	- MEMO Findings of Fact
	Res 16-12 CarlsonKeith2.Approving DK
	- MEMO Findings of Fact
	Res 17-12 CarlsonKeith3.Approving DK
	- MEMO Prohibited Discharge into Sanitary Sewer
	Ord 210 Prohibited Discharge into Sanitary Sewer Redlined
	Ord 210 Prohibited Discharge into Sanitary Sewer Clean
	- MEMO Lindberg Variance
	Linberg Application
	Lindberg Engineered Plans
	Lindberg Site Plans
	Lindberg - 1st Engineer Review
	Lindberg - 2nd Engineer Review
	Memo - Ordinance 212 - Canoe Racks Amendments
	Ordinance 212 - Watercraft Regulation and Storage - 2012
	Section 425 Redlined
	- Memo - Ordinance 211 - Delinquent Sewer and Stormwater Fees R1
	Ordinance 211 - Deliquent Sewer and Stormwater Fees - 2012 R1
	- MEMO Intoxicating Liquor Prohibitions
	- MEMO Ordinance Procedures
	Ordinance Procedures of Neighboring Cities
	- MEMO Council Reports no date
	- MEMO FYI no date
	05-24-12 Mississippi River Comments
	06-11-12 GW Circle Letter
	06-15-12 Termination of Low Water Declaration Press Release (Final)
	06-15-12 Web Hits Summary.xls
	06-15-12 Web Report
	06-20-12 PC Minutes

	Lindberg Checklist
	07-05-12 Council Packet
	07-05-12 Agenda
	- MEMO Consent no date
	MAY CASH SUMMARY
	JULY PAYROLL CHECK REGISTER
	JUNE PAYABLES CHECK REGISTER
	JUNE PAYABLES FOR COUNCIL APPROVAL
	- MEMO Watermain
	06-13-12 Petition
	GRMEM.WaterMainPetition61512
	Res 07-12 Insufficiency of May Petition R1
	Res 15-12 Adequacy of 06-13-12 Petition
	RES 15-12 Insufficiency of 06-13-12 Petition
	- MEMO Findings of Fact
	Res 16-12 CarlsonKeith2.Approving DK
	- MEMO Findings of Fact
	Res 17-12 CarlsonKeith3.Approving DK
	- MEMO Prohibited Discharge into Sanitary Sewer
	Ord 210 Prohibited Discharge into Sanitary Sewer Redlined
	Ord 210 Prohibited Discharge into Sanitary Sewer Clean
	- MEMO Lindberg Variance
	Linberg Application
	Lindberg Engineered Plans
	Lindberg Site Plans
	Lindberg - 1st Engineer Review
	Lindberg - 2nd Engineer Review
	Memo - Ordinance 212 - Canoe Racks Amendments
	Ordinance 212 - Watercraft Regulation and Storage - 2012
	Section 425 Redlined
	- Memo - Ordinance 211 - Delinquent Sewer and Stormwater Fees R1
	Ordinance 211 - Deliquent Sewer and Stormwater Fees - 2012 R1
	- MEMO Intoxicating Liquor Prohibitions
	- MEMO Ordinance Procedures
	Ordinance Procedures of Neighboring Cities
	- MEMO Council Reports no date
	- MEMO FYI no date
	05-24-12 Mississippi River Comments
	06-11-12 GW Circle Letter
	06-15-12 Termination of Low Water Declaration Press Release (Final)
	06-15-12 Web Hits Summary.xls
	06-15-12 Web Report
	06-20-12 PC Minutes


